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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This meeting is

          3  called to order. Today's meeting is the Committee on

          4  Housing and Buildings. We are discussing the Fiscal

          5  1999 Mayor's Management Report. My name is Archie

          6  Spigner and I am Chair of the Committee.

          7                 Commissioner Visconti, as usual, do

          8  you have any -- maybe we should wait for Channel 74.

          9                 Channel 74, do you want us to wait

         10  for you? I will give you two minutes, because I

         11  think what we say is important, and a lot of people

         12  watch this program and they learn from it.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, I

         14  can't get a sandwich without someone saying I saw

         15  you on --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's right,

         17  they learn from it. So, let's be patient.

         18                 (Recess taken.)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: My name is

         20  Archie Spigner, I am Chair of the Council's Housing

         21  and Buildings Committee. I call this meeting of the

         22  Council's Committee on Housing and Buildings to

         23  order.

         24                 Today's agenda will discuss the

         25  Mayor's 1999 Mayor's Management Report which is the
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          2  report card, as such. It covers aspects of the goals

          3  and achievements of the Department of Buildings as

          4  our first agency to be discussed.

          5                 We are now being joined by Council

          6  Member Mike Nelson, who is a member of the

          7  Committee.

          8                 Commissioner Visconti, if you will

          9  identify yourself for the record and the members of

         10  your staff accompanying you, and any statement, any

         11  opening statement that you have to make that you

         12  have for us would be greatly appreciated at this

         13  time.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, I

         15  would be happy, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 My name is Richard Visconti, and I am

         17  the Acting Commissioner of the Department of

         18  Buildings.

         19                 With me this morning, to my left, is

         20  Stanley Shor, Chief of Staff. To my immediate right,

         21  Barry Cox, Deputy Commissioner for Operations, and

         22  to his right Patricia Ketterer, Assistant

         23  Commissioner for Administration.

         24                 Mr. Chairman, members of the

         25  Committee, my name is Richard Visconti, and I am the
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          2  Acting Commissioner for the New York City Department

          3  of Buildings.

          4                 Thank you for providing me this

          5  opportunity to speak to you about the Department's

          6  submission of Fiscal Year 1999 Mayor's Management

          7  Report. I will take this opportunity to briefly

          8  describe the status of the Department's key

          9  initiatives as noted in the MMR, and provide a

         10  preview of some of the things that we will be

         11  working on in the near future.

         12                 The Mayor and his administration are

         13  committed to ensuring public safety, and as such,

         14  have strongly supported our Department and its

         15  initiatives.

         16                 It is clearly evident that the City

         17  of New York has undergone an unprecedented

         18  construction boom over the last several years.

         19  Various indicators in the Mayor's Management Report

         20  reflect this trend, but none is more revealing than

         21  if we look at the total number of new applications

         22  that were filed for construction work in Fiscal Year

         23  1999, as compared to Fiscal Year 1998.

         24                 This indicator reveals that the

         25  Department of Buildings received 14 percent more
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          2  applications of construction work than we have

          3  received during the prior year. Similar percentage

          4  increases were received in the previous two fiscal

          5  years, resulting in an overall increase of 43

          6  percent between Fiscal Year 1996 to Fiscal Year

          7  1999.

          8                 As the lead New York City agency

          9  responsible for public safety regarding construction

         10  operations at over 900,000 buildings, the Department

         11  has responded to this increased activity by

         12  conducting more inspections and improving our

         13  internal operations.

         14                 Regardless, our main goals have

         15  remained essentially the same over the last several

         16  years. The first is to protect the public by

         17  assuring that work under the Department jurisdiction

         18  meets code standards and is performed by properly

         19  qualified individuals. The second is to reorganize

         20  and revise our procedures to simplify the process

         21  for business. This year we have added a third major

         22  goal, which is to improve the availability of the

         23  Department's resources to the public through a

         24  renewed commitment to customer service.

         25                 The Department conducts field
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          2  construction, elevator, plumbing, boiler, electrical

          3  and crane and derrick inspections in order to ensure

          4  that construction activities are being performed in

          5  accordance with code standards.

          6                 As the Mayor's Management Report for

          7  Fiscal Year 1990 reflects, the Department performed

          8  299,656 total inspections or 18 percent more than in

          9  Fiscal Year 1998. When compared to Fiscal Year 1997,

         10  there was a dramatic 59 percent increase in the

         11  total number of inspections. Individually the

         12  numbers show a decisive surge in productivity.

         13                 During Fiscal Year 1999, the

         14  Department performed 11,710 more construction

         15  inspections, 12,946 more elevator inspections, 6,108

         16  more plumbing inspections, 9,015 more electrical

         17  inspections and 3,009 more crane and derrick

         18  inspections than Fiscal Year 1998.

         19                 This increase was due to an increase

         20  in the number of inspectors in our construction

         21  division and to a new labor contract that increased

         22  the work day of inspectors by one hour.

         23                 I would like to take this opportunity

         24  to briefly discuss with you some of the proactive

         25  enforcement initiatives that the Department has
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          2  implemented during this fiscal year.

          3                 I will also update you on several

          4  ongoing enforcement initiatives designed to improve

          5  the quality of life in our city.

          6                 The Department has aggressively

          7  addressed the problem of illegally created dwelling

          8  units. In order to proactively inspect and respond

          9  to complaints in the communities, the Department now

         10  has on board 17 inspectors and three supervising

         11  inspectors to conduct illegal conversion

         12  inspections.

         13                 The inspectors are assigned to

         14  non-standard shifts covering evening hours and

         15  weekends, in an effort to increase access to alleged

         16  illegal and unsafe conditions.

         17                 Since the quality of life team's

         18  inception in March 1997, its inspectors have

         19  performed approximately 20,800 field visits, written

         20  over 16,900 violations, and issued approximately 110

         21  vacate orders related to illegal conversions.

         22                 In response to an increase in illegal

         23  conversion complaints in Brooklyn during Fiscal Year

         24  1999, the Department broadened the team's efforts by

         25  responding by these types of complaints in that
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          2  borough as well as Queens. We plan to rotate these

          3  teams efforts into Staten Island next month to be

          4  followed by the Bronx during the next calendar year.

          5                 In July 1998, the Mayor launched an

          6  adult use task force in order to determine which

          7  establishments were in violation of the adult zoning

          8  resolution. Using existing staff, the Department

          9  reassigned construction inspectors to assist the

         10  inspection of approximately 144 adult

         11  establishments, of which over 66 establishments have

         12  either been closed, are complying with the new text,

         13  are no longer engaged in this form of business.

         14                 Currently the Department's adult use

         15  task force is performing additional visits to the

         16  remaining establishments still open in order to

         17  document and gather further evidence for cases that

         18  are pending in court.

         19                 In October 1998, the Department

         20  started a signage enforcement training program for

         21  about 20 construction inspectors in order to respond

         22  expeditiously to signed complaints from the City

         23  Council, community boards, civic groups, business

         24  improvement districts and the general public.

         25                 The actual inspections began in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            10

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  January 1999, and to date our inspectors have made

          3  nearly 800 field visits and issued over 700

          4  violations.

          5                 We have also conducted training

          6  sessions for the community boards and civic groups

          7  on the zoning resolution and building code sign

          8  provisions so that the complaints we receive are

          9  valid.

         10                 In July 1999, the Department created

         11  a new team of inspectors to perform annual,

         12  comprehensive construction inspections at all of the

         13  City's public school buildings.

         14                 These inspections consist of site,

         15  exterior, interior, ongoing renovation and an

         16  overall assessment of the structure.

         17                 Between January and June 1999, the

         18  team performed the necessary 1,400 inspections,

         19  which resulted in the issuance of 1,426 violations

         20  to 604 school buildings.

         21                 The violations issued to the Board of

         22  Education range from minor and ordinary maintenance

         23  items, such as roof leaks and broken windowpanes to

         24  more significant violations that require immediate

         25  attention, such as cracked brickwork.
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          2                 At this time there are no cases of

          3  imminent danger to students or faculties which would

          4  require a school closing.

          5                 In Fiscal 1999, the Department

          6  created the specialized special enforcement unit,

          7  which will have two principal tasks. First the unit

          8  will target persistent violators, high profile

          9  offenders and other special cases, in which are the

         10  Department's existing enforcement mechanisms do not

         11  achieve compliance.

         12                 Second, the unit will critically

         13  audit and analyze the Department's existing

         14  enforcement mechanisms and propose organizational

         15  regulatory legislative and other changes to enhance

         16  the effectiveness of those mechanisms in obtaining

         17  legal compliance.

         18                 Over the last several years, the

         19  Department has reorganized and streamlined our

         20  permitting and other operational processes to make

         21  it easier for those who conduct business with us.

         22                 These initiatives have made the

         23  Department more efficient, public safety remains of

         24  paramount concern. One such initiative was

         25  increasing the popularity of PC filing during Fiscal
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          2  Year 1999. PC filing enabled users to upload

          3  application information directly into the agency's

          4  computer system and avoid processing delays related

          5  to data entry backlogs.

          6                 Although PC filing was developed

          7  several years ago, this past year there was a

          8  dramatic increase in its usage.

          9                 Nearly 32 percent of all new permit

         10  applications in Fiscal Year 1999 were conducted

         11  using PC filing, compared to 14 percent and one

         12  percent in the preceding two fiscal years.

         13                 To encourage the use of PC filing in

         14  Fiscal Year 1999, the Department implemented

         15  priority service for applicants who use this

         16  program. To further expand the usage of PC filing,

         17  the Department now accepts credit cards, Master

         18  Card, Visa, American Express, and Discovery, for

         19  payment of PC filing fees.

         20                 By adding the acceptance of credit

         21  cards, the PC filing initiative, the Department

         22  moves closer and closer to accepting filings and

         23  payment from remote locations rather than in the

         24  Department's borough offices.

         25                 The Department is currently
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          2  developing an expansion of the PC filing program to

          3  include subsequent and cluster filings. We are

          4  currently testing this update to ensure that it is

          5  working properly before it is released.

          6                 During Fiscal 1999 the Department

          7  decided to completely revise our procedures on the

          8  licensing of trades people in the construction

          9  industry.

         10                 Historically the Department of

         11  Citywide Administration Services, DCAS, administered

         12  many of the required examinations that led to the

         13  issuance of these licenses by the Department of

         14  Buildings.

         15                 In cooperation with DCAS, it has

         16  determined that it would be prudent for these exams

         17  to be developed, administered and rated by private

         18  companies through contracts supervised by the

         19  Department of Buildings.

         20                 This will also provide an opportunity

         21  to bring these licensing exams into conformity with

         22  current industry standards.

         23                 Vendors for two of these contracts,

         24  one for the licensing of site safety managers, and

         25  the other for agency, director and inspector to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  conduct elevator inspectors for submission to the

          3  DOB certification examination, will begin work this

          4  December.

          5                 The Department, with the assistance

          6  of the Mayor's Office of Operations and grants from

          7  their technology fund, working on several new

          8  technology and customer service initiatives that

          9  will help us to reach our third major goal of

         10  improving the availability of our resources to the

         11  public.

         12                 Once fully implemented, these

         13  customer service technology initiatives will make

         14  doing business with the Department of Buildings a

         15  more pleasant experience.

         16                 I would like to take this opportunity

         17  to describe some of these customer service

         18  enhancements.

         19                 In Fiscal 1999, the Department

         20  received funding to purchase hand-held computers for

         21  elevator inspectors.

         22                 Under this pilot project our field

         23  inspectors will be able to instantly update the

         24  Department's computer system, thereby reducing data

         25  entry delays and permit the agency to reassign
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          2  clerical staff to more critical needs. We expect to

          3  implement this project in the very near future.

          4                 Over the last several years we

          5  developed the local and wide area network so that

          6  each of our 425 employees with a personal computer

          7  in our executive and borough offices can instantly

          8  communicate through electronic mail, appointment

          9  scheduling and the sharing of files.

         10                 We are currently building an agency

         11  Intranet that will permit our network users to

         12  access and query the building code, zoning

         13  resolution, department policy and procedure notices,

         14  budget directives, personnel policies and forms.

         15                 The Department has also received a

         16  grant from the technology fund to provide the

         17  equipment and resources needed for the electronic

         18  filing of plans and applications by engineers and

         19  architects. These types of electronic filings,

         20  commonly known as CAD, will be stored on our network

         21  server and will be able to be reviewed on computer

         22  work stations of our plan examiners. Funding from

         23  the Mayor's Office for a queque management system

         24  known as Q-Matic was also approved in Fiscal 1999

         25  and will be in place in our Manhattan Office in
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          2  January 2000. Under the Q-Matic system, each

          3  applicant will receive a number similar to the

          4  process used at the Department of Motor Vehicles.

          5  Numbers will be displayed on an electronic board

          6  thereby notifying a customer his or her time to

          7  receive service from  DOB staff person. Q-Matic will

          8  also provide the Department with valuable

          9  information and operating statistics, enabling

         10  management to identify problem areas and reduce

         11  waiting times for the public.

         12                 This system will ultimately be

         13  installed in all the borough offices and will help

         14  to create a more orderly and professional

         15  environment.

         16                 The Department, with the assistance

         17  of the Mayor's Office of Operations, is also

         18  developing a centralized complaint call center. This

         19  call center will receive all complaints for the five

         20  boroughs and forward these complaints to the proper

         21  inspection unit for action and response.

         22                 The Department will respond more

         23  efficiently and effectively to hazardous and public

         24  safety-type complaints, once this call center is in

         25  effect.
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          2                 In conjunction with the call center,

          3  a new integrated voice response system is being

          4  purchased to better assist the public with assessing

          5  property information, referral agencies and direct

          6  responses to their inquiries.

          7                 We are also working on a development

          8  with customer service kiosks to be located at each

          9  of our borough offices. These devices, similar to

         10  automated teller machines, will display and print

         11  information about the Buildings Department, provide

         12  links to related information at other city agencies,

         13  and allow the user to fill in and print our forms.

         14                 Finally, the Department is well

         15  prepared to meet any challenges that may arise due

         16  to the Year 2000 date change. Under the guidance of

         17  the Mayor's Y2K project office, we analyzed, tested

         18  and corrected our mainframe applications over one

         19  year ago.

         20                 We have also received all of our

         21  network and personal computers and other assets with

         22  imbedded technologies to ensure that there are no

         23  Y2K issues.

         24                 Lastly, we have worked with the

         25  Mayor's Office of Emergency Management and
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          2  consultants to develop comprehensive Y2K contingency

          3  plans in each of our critical business processes. We

          4  will continue to update you on these initiatives and

          5  improvements in the coming months.

          6                 Thank you for your time, and I

          7  appreciate your continued support of the

          8  Department's programs and welcome any questions you

          9  may have at this time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         11  Commissioner, and I am going to accept your

         12  invitation to ask any questions. I am going to begin

         13  by going to page two of your statement where you say

         14  our main goal basically remains essentially the

         15  same. The first is to protect the public by assuring

         16  that work under the Department's jurisdiction meets

         17  code standards, et cetera, et cetera.

         18                 Now, code standards determine what

         19  can and what cannot be constructed on any given

         20  piece of property; is that correct, sir?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         22  the building code is a performance specification

         23  that tells the architect and the contractor what the

         24  minimum requirements are to build the particular

         25  building.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And the

          3  limitations.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And

          5  certain limitations that relate to whether the

          6  building is fireproof construction or if it is

          7  combustable construction.

          8                 The zoning resolution will tell you

          9  obviously where particular uses may be located so --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Where particular

         11  uses may be located. And if a developer disagrees

         12  with a zoning resolution or a code, he can go then

         13  either to the Board of Standard and Appeals for a

         14  variance, or to the City Planning Commission for a

         15  change of zoning; is that correct?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right,

         17  if it was a use issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, once a

         19  developer or a home improvement person gets a

         20  Department of Building Permit, is it reasonable to

         21  assume that he or she should go and spend money and

         22  do that zoning, do what that permit allows for? Is

         23  that reasonable?

         24                 And I will tell you why I am asking

         25  the question. I am not playing guessing games.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Because unless you have been out of the state or out

          3  of the country, you know that raging in my district

          4  is an issue regarding a hotel that is weeks away

          5  from completion where the developer and the owner of

          6  a project claims that he has a valid Department of

          7  Building permit to permit him to put that use -- not

          8  only does he have one, he has two. Since you are a

          9  friend of mine, I am not even going to ask you to do

         10  what you don't want to do. If you feel you want to

         11  expound, because I can envision --

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         13  let me try to answer the question in a general way,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You know the

         16  discussion that I am talking about?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         18  Well, a developer can come to the Department and

         19  seek a building permit for a project.

         20                 It is reviewed based on the current

         21  zoning resolution and the current Building Code

         22  requirements, a permit is issued. If the Department

         23  has not made a mistake, and we are not perfect, but

         24  let's assume that we have not made a mistake --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It appears in
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          2  this case there was a mistake made.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          4  then the Department cannot be prevented from

          5  correcting its mistake.

          6                 But if a person has taken out a

          7  permit, then there is an obligation on the part of

          8  the permit holder to proceed with construction. That

          9  permit has a life span.

         10                 So, if someone would take the permit

         11  out today and five years from now decide to start

         12  construction, that permit would have lapsed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Agreed.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Under

         15  the provisions of the Building Code.

         16                 And that person would have to come

         17  back into the Department, as if it were a new

         18  application and again apply. We would then review it

         19  based on the current code requirement and the

         20  current zoning requirement.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And he is then

         22  issued a building permit, is it reasonable that he

         23  or she should proceed to build?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: If it

         25  is in compliance with the current code and zoning,
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          2  yes. But the Department from time to time, Archie,

          3  does make mistakes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I think one was

          5  made in this instance.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: If we

          7  had made a mistake, then we are duty bound to

          8  correct that mistake.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I think what you

         10  ought to do is give Mr. Mahad his money, the 1.2

         11  million or whatever he spent, and tell him good

         12  luck, in some other venture. But I don't know how we

         13  make a mistake and take his money too. I just don't

         14  know how we square that, but that is an ongoing

         15  discussion which we will leave for another venue.

         16                 All right, we won't try to resolve

         17  that today. It is one that is taking up a lot of my

         18  time and is generating a lot of heat.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         20  Generally these issues are very complex, they are

         21  not always as straightforward as a mistake on the

         22  Department's part. People begin construction

         23  thinking they have a valid permit, they don't have a

         24  thorough understanding of what the rules and

         25  regulations.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You don't have a

          3  valid permit, I mean what is a valid permit? Either

          4  it is valid or it is not valid.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It has

          6  a one-year life span.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me just read

          8  this now.

          9                 In April 1998 he went back to the

         10  agency for a new work permit to replace the one that

         11  had expired and again we see the approval, and that

         12  is in the Daily News story by Donald Bertrend and

         13  that is dated Thursday, November the 11th. So, let's

         14  not take up this meeting with that topic, but you

         15  can see how difficult this is going to be to

         16  resolve.

         17                 I understand fully the community's

         18  concern, that they believe and perhaps with good

         19  reason, that a hotel, which from a lot of experience

         20  has the potential of becoming a problem, is not what

         21  they would want to see on Jamaica Avenue.

         22                 But at the same time, if we are

         23  issuing permits, how do we square our responsibility

         24  as a reliable official agency, giving out permits

         25  that don't square with the code?
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          2                 All right, where am I? All right, we

          3  have been joined by Council Member Boyland, Tracy

          4  Boyland.

          5                 Council Member Nelson, do you have a

          6  question?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, thank

          8  you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 Mr. Visconti, good morning. Who is

         10  the authority to enforce Department of Buildings

         11  stop work order, particularly in regards to illegal

         12  conversions?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         14  we look to the Police Department to assist us in

         15  enforcing stop work orders, and when the local

         16  precinct is very supportive of our enforcement

         17  activities, you know, we get their support, but we

         18  do have issues from time to time in getting the

         19  local precinct to assist us in those types of

         20  enforcements.

         21                 It is interesting really, there is

         22  really no modus operandi as far as working between

         23  DOB and the police in enforcement? It is up to the

         24  individual commander of each precinct?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Based
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          2  on the resources that they have and the policing

          3  issues that they have, they make the decision with

          4  regard to the allocation of their resources.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So, in other

          6  words, if they have other big jobs, and of course

          7  they could not get a patrol car over there if they

          8  have more activity going on, perhaps in case of

          9  muggings and things like that? But if they don't, do

         10  they have to respond to DOB? Is it a normal

         11  situation in that they really didn't have, they are

         12  not responding to a lot of other calls that they

         13  have to react at DOB?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: When we

         15  reach out to them and specifically ask their

         16  assistance, they are very responsive.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: But they don't

         18  have to? Am I reading this -- in other words, if you

         19  call them up, the individual commander can like

         20  fluff it off and say he doesn't want to have that

         21  responded to in this command? There is no really

         22  direct cooperation between two city agencies in that

         23  respect, that the Police Commanders know right now

         24  from One Police Plaza.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Generally when there is an issue with a particular

          3  site, we will reach out to the local precinct, and

          4  they will be responsive.

          5                 I thought your question was more in

          6  general was the police going around on a sort of

          7  regular basis and monitoring, and that is not what

          8  they are doing.

          9                 But when we have a particular problem

         10  site, a particular problem building, they are very

         11  responsive.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And they do

         13  have the power obviously to enforce the DOB stop

         14  work order?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: What does

         17  someone do if they receive information that such an

         18  order is being transgressed?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I am

         20  sorry, could you repeat that?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Let's say

         22  somebody calls in, even the member of the public

         23  calls in and they know that this work is not -- it

         24  is illegal or they think it is illegal, what can

         25  they do? Is there a number at DOB for them to call,
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          2  other than of course going to their local elected

          3  officials? Would they be responded to if an

          4  individual calls up the Department?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

          6  can either call our complaint number and lodge the

          7  complaint. It is best that they work through the

          8  community board, because we look to the community

          9  boards to help filter out the priority complaints.

         10  So a complaint which is coming from the community

         11  board has already been imbedded in a sense by the

         12  community board, and we know that it is a priority

         13  complaint and we will respond in a timely manner.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It has been

         15  your experience that the police had been cooperative

         16  in these areas?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         18  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.

         20                 What categories of work can now be

         21  self certified with the Department of Buildings?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         23  licensed plumbers can self-certify plumbing work.

         24  Electrical contractors can self-certify a Fire

         25  Department letter of defect.  After the Fire
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          2  Department inspects a fire alarm system they may do

          3  that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commissioner,

          5  maybe for the benefit of the Committee you might

          6  want to submit to us a list of all of the

          7  self-certification opportunities that exist with DOB

          8  as opposed to trying to stretch your memory at this

          9  point?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

         11  just have the programs here and I wanted to make

         12  sure that I did in fact cover the program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Boiler

         15  inspections can be self-certified. Elevator

         16  inspections, we know plant examination applications

         17  can be self-certified, and applications to our --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You mean the

         19  total building application which the permit to

         20  construct is based, right?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes,

         22  the entire application can be self-certified.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And of course

         24  you hold the licensed person, whether it is the

         25  architectural engineer or whatever, responsible if
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          2  in fact your audits show there are violations or

          3  that they were criminally making assertions that

          4  were not true?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          6  we audit about 20 percent of the applications. When

          7  we audit them, the vast majority of problems that we

          8  find are basically administrative. Some of the

          9  paperwork is not correct, and at sort of the end of

         10  the day last year, out of I think what was -- out of

         11  some, about 7,400 professionally certified plans,

         12  the end result that there were approximately about

         13  11 applications which were revoked, which is a very

         14  small percentage, representing less than one

         15  percent.

         16                 And none of them involved public

         17  safety and we have taken various disciplinary

         18  actions against individuals who have been found to

         19  have either --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This is

         21  fraudulent --

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         23  Falsified falsifications.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Falsifications.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  through our internal audit and disciplinary unit

          3  where their privileges to participate in the program

          4  have been suspended or revoked.

          5                 Unfortunately in both the professions

          6  and the trades you are always going to have a few

          7  bad apples and we feel we are rooting them out over

          8  time. They are being penalized, there are fines that

          9  are associated with violating our rules on

         10  professional certification. But we feel confident

         11  that the program is working and that we are very

         12  effective in rooting out those individuals who

         13  abused the system.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: By category,

         15  though, it is 20 percent, is that across the board,

         16  whether it is plumbing, electrical or --

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No,

         18  that was a plan examination. It turns out in

         19  plumbing we also are auditing about 20 percent, I

         20  think last year it was about 21 percent of the

         21  certified work was audited, and the vast majority of

         22  problems again relate to the administrative

         23  procedures. Things like the plumber not having the

         24  approved plans on the site, a common problem we have

         25  is the plumber has to notify us in advance of the
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          2  inspection that he or she is going to perform and

          3  then we arrive at that appointed time in our audits.

          4                 And sometimes what happens is the

          5  plumber who is not in total control of construction

          6  and the closing up walls, will suddenly find that

          7  the walls have been started to be closed up before

          8  he has done his inspection and suddenly the, you

          9  know, the inspection has failed because the walls

         10  were closed up. It was a problem for the plumber as

         11  well as for us, someone went in and closed the

         12  walls.

         13                 But there have been no real safety

         14  problems that have come up in our audit inspections.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just one more

         16  question here. Like Reagan said, we trust but we

         17  also verify. Do you automatically increase the

         18  number of audits when it is found in some cases

         19  there there seems to be something going on? Is there

         20  any procedure --

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         22  we will look closely at the individual, whether it

         23  is a licensed plumber or it is an architect or

         24  engineer, we will watch that individual very

         25  closely, and at times we will audit all of their
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          2  work to ensure that they play by the rules.

          3                 As I said, in many instances we will

          4  revoke that privilege and they will not be able to

          5  participate in the program.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is the

          7  ultimate sanction that you have to impose. That is

          8  just to revoke the ability to participate.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I guess you

         11  would give a person an opportunity to defend his

         12  mistake --

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

         14  have a process with the trades that we license.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: A tribunal?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes. We

         17  have licensed boards in which each individual who

         18  has been found to have violated our rules with those

         19  programs, there is an opportunity for a hearing,

         20  there is a review by their peers, and so that every

         21  opportunity is given to the individual to give their

         22  side of the story so-to-speak.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Similarly,

         24  increase audits to make sure that we stay on top of

         25  persistent accident prone people, people who are
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          2  prone to make mistakes. The same guy who is making

          3  the same mistake all the time.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          5  we watch them very closely, and we have succeeded in

          6  getting some of the people literally out of the

          7  business because we have revoked the license, or we

          8  have given them a lifetime revocation when it comes

          9  to expediters who falsify or do the wrong thing, we

         10  have totally removed them from ever having any

         11  contact with the Department.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I guess

         13  self-certification is so central, you wouldn't know

         14  how to function if you didn't have the

         15  self-certification provision or opportunities. You

         16  would have to -- I mean, self-certification is a

         17  part of every day life, and everybody is

         18  self-certifying his own weights and measures, his

         19  own processes, in every profession there are certain

         20  degrees of self-certification and we have to depend

         21  on the integrity and the ethics and the ability and

         22  the hope that people will do the right thing, and

         23  when they don't they have to be held responsible.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member
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          2  Boyland.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 Hi. Welcome.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Thank

          7  you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: My question

          9  is in regards to train-related construction

         10  accidents. A strange thing happened to me last week.

         11  As I was returning home after an early morning

         12  breakfast with one of my colleagues, we live in a

         13  community of two-story, three-story brownstone

         14  houses, we witnessed, my dad, my brother and I, a

         15  gentleman falling off of a two-family house, a roof,

         16  down to the concrete. The first thing I thought

         17  about was, first of all, why wasn't he wearing a

         18  safety harness because he was going up the front of

         19  a building on a ladder; and secondly, the liability

         20  aspects in terms of him falling off the roof. It was

         21  a devastating event to everyone in my community, and

         22  it just made me think about some of the safety

         23  precautions that we have to deal with in the City

         24  and of course contractors have to deal with.

         25                 In the last few years there have been
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          2  a number or crane-related accidents. As you can

          3  remember the crane sweeping the man around. My

          4  question to you is, has DOB taken any measures to

          5  address this growing problem of not just the crane

          6  incident, but of the fatalities or the incidents

          7  that happen with contractors or construction workers

          8  in their particular field. And is there some sort of

          9  record to address the numbers of accidents versus,

         10  you know, some record in terms of what the accidents

         11  are and what needs to be done in terms of safety

         12  precautions.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Okay,

         14  your question is very broad and wide-ranging.

         15                 I think, first, one of the I think

         16  critical components of safety and construction is

         17  responsibility, responsibility of the contractor who

         18  is performing the work.

         19                 New York City is one of the few

         20  jurisdictions now that does not have a licensing law

         21  for general contractors. So, that when we look at

         22  the broad issue of safety and accountability, a

         23  contractor who I will just characterize as a road

         24  contractor or a contractor who has unsafe practices,

         25  continues to do work in the City because there is no
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          2  licensing law. There is no mechanism for me --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Making it

          4  mandatory for them to wear the belts and the

          5  harness?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: This is

          7  a very complicated issue and your question was very

          8  broad. So, I think it first starts with the general

          9  contractor, and without a license scheme for general

         10  contractors, we do not have the ability to hold the

         11  contractor accountable. We can go out and we can

         12  issue a violation, we can stop the work if it is

         13  particularly egregious, but that same contractor can

         14  come back to the Department the next day and pull a

         15  permit for another project. There is no mechanism

         16  for us to prevent them from continuing to work.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Let's just

         18  say that one particular contractor had four

         19  accidents within the last month, obviously if he is

         20  a roofer, which this particular firm was, a roofer,

         21  and he had four people fall off a roof in a month,

         22  would that be something you would look at and say,

         23  well, there are some things that you need to improve

         24  upon?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,
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          2  the federal government through OSHA is always

          3  enforcing safety and their activities are separate

          4  and apart from ours. But they are a player in the

          5  safety arena.

          6                 Many of the contractors who are doing

          7  work will have to hire various licensees to do the

          8  work, such as riggers. And in that area we looked at

          9  the issue of accidents. We looked at statistics, and

         10  we saw there had been an increase in accidents that

         11  had been quite dramatic this year. The press has

         12  given a lot of coverage to individuals who have

         13  fallen or you have had issues with suspended

         14  scaffolds.

         15                 The Department is in the process now

         16  of promulgating rules. We have had a public hearing

         17  and we are now reviewing the public testimony that

         18  was taken at that public hearing, and we intend to

         19  put in place rules that will require mandatory

         20  safety training for individuals who work on

         21  suspended scaffolds.

         22                 And the accountability will be

         23  through the licensee. Again, because that is an

         24  individual that we do license, we can take that

         25  license away, we can discipline them, if they don't
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          2  follow those rules.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so it

          4  is mandatory that they attend the safety training

          5  course?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That is

          7  what is in our rules, that we are, as I said, in the

          8  process of promulgating.

          9                 So, I think we are addressing in many

         10  areas safety in a proactive way, but I think one of

         11  the principle components here is licensing

         12  contractors, which would give us the enforcement

         13  mechanism to deal with contractors who do their work

         14  in an unsafe manner.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We are joined by

         18  Council Member Warden from the Bronx.

         19                 On page six you talked about vendors.

         20  On page six, the top paragraph. As it relates to:

         21  "Vendors for two of these contracts, one for the

         22  licensing of Site Safety Managers and the other for

         23  Agency Director and Inspector, and in parenthesis,

         24  to conduct elevator inspections for submission to

         25  DOB, certification examination, will begin work this
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          2  December.

          3                 Can you explain to me what exactly

          4  that means?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Sure.

          6                 Barry, do you want to?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Quite some

          8  time ago we issued an RFP, several people responded.

          9  The intent of the RFP is to have a private vendor do

         10  the testing for site safety manager, elevator

         11  director, and down the road plumbing and all of the

         12  other licenses that the City --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Elevator

         14  director?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Yes. There

         16  are private companies --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What is an

         18  agency director? A person who owns a company?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Essentially,

         20  yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Who is the boss

         22  of the company.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Elevators,

         24  yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh, elevator,
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          2  okay.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We went

          4  through the public process, we selected a vendor,

          5  Exterior I believe is the name of the company.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Exterior? Where

          7  are they located?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: In Colorado,

          9  I believe.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: No New York City

         11  company.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: A joint

         13  venture with a New York City entity.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: It is with

         16  the Law Department for review. It will come out of

         17  there very shortly and it will be registered with

         18  the Comptroller, and we expect to have a site safety

         19  test in place within the next five to six months.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Site safety

         21  specifically with elevators or for the --

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: General

         23  construction. That is the initial --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There is some

         25  level of construction that has required the presence
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          2  of a site safety now, right?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: When it reaches

          5  a certain dollar level?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Height.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Height, dollar,

          8  so forth.

          9                 What does that change?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: That test

         11  was administered by the City of New York.

         12                 The industry has come to us and said

         13  the tests have to be given more often and has to be

         14  updated more often. And the best way to deal with

         15  that is to have a private entity administer the exam

         16  and do the testing for us. And we will get out of

         17  the testing business.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There are

         19  schools or businesses that some have come to visit

         20  me that do training of site safety officers, how

         21  does this change that relationship?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: It doesn't.

         23  This is the test that it will be administered for an

         24  individual to be --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Once you are
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          2  trained, you have to then take a test to be

          3  qualified or certified, or authorized to perform

          4  site safety responsibilities?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Based on

          6  your experience you qualify to take the test. If you

          7  pass the test, you are essentially licensed as a

          8  site safety person. There is then a requirement on a

          9  cyclical basis that you take additional courses to

         10  maintain that license. This RFP does not change that

         11  piece.

         12                 What it does is have the testing

         13  process that used to be done by government, done by

         14  a private entity.

         15                 Schools that exist to give the

         16  updated courses will continue to exist.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So does this

         18  upgrade the requirement and the ability of -- I am

         19  speaking specifically of elevators now, does this

         20  upgrade the standards for elevator inspectors, or

         21  companies that provide that service?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: What has

         23  happened in the elevator division historically, with

         24  respect to licensing elevator companies to do

         25  inspections for us, there has never been a standard
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          2  that they have been held to. The test that the City

          3  administered was an oral examination.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Which we

          5  criticized in our report.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: Absolutely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  We have

          8  aggressively criticized.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We all agree

         10  with that. What this will do is give the ability to

         11  a private entity to put together a test that the

         12  City of New York didn't do. And it will upgrade the

         13  requirements, it will standardize and the reality is

         14  it will be administered by a third party based on

         15  information that they gather from the industry.

         16                 So, what we are going to do is have a

         17  test that reflects present day technology, present

         18  day --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Can we say the

         20  DOB is responding to the Council's suggestions?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER COX: We agree

         22  with your suggestions, but we were there first.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Any way you want

         24  to say it.

         25                 Now, the name of the company is?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

          3  Experio.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And how many

          5  companies have responded to the RFP?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KETTERER: I am

          7  Patricia Ketterer, Assistant Commissioner of

          8  Administration. About eight or nine.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Could we have

         10  the name of the eight or nine who responded?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER KETTERER:

         12  Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         14                 Let's move on. Back in August, at a

         15  meeting -- you were devising some alternative

         16  periodic inspection schedule. In other words, it

         17  comes about every six months now between your agency

         18  and private inspection, is it clear that you are

         19  working on some devised schedule of inspection for

         20  elevators?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We have

         22  been looking at that issue and we have a proposal

         23  with the Mayor's Office to.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are you ready to

         25  let us know what it is?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Not

          3  yet.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, when you

          5  are ready.

          6                 Now, in light of the amusement park

          7  accident ride, the ride in Coney Island, the

          8  accident in Coney Island, does DOB ever receive

          9  complaints regarding amusement park devices and

         10  rides? And I know DOB is a complaint-driven agency;

         11  in other words, if you don't get any complaints, you

         12  don't get any inspection. And specifically with

         13  amusement rides, every ride has to be inspected and

         14  signed off on before it can function.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And then I guess

         17  there are some periodic inspections. But do you ever

         18  get any calls and say I was on a ride at Coney

         19  Island and that thing is clinging and clanging and

         20  sending a clear message that you guys need to get

         21  over there and take a look at it? Not only at Coney

         22  Island, it could have been at any ride, maybe a

         23  permanent ride or a temporary ride that are just all

         24  over the City, working in conjunction with churches

         25  and civic groups to raise funds. I know you do a
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          2  thorough examination because the area of

          3  responsibility is so critical, and the consequences

          4  are so great to irresponsible inspection or

          5  operation. Just anecdotally can you recall ever

          6  receiving --

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I can't

          8  recall, but I have never really had a discussion

          9  with staff about complaints that were called in with

         10  regard to amusement rides. But if we did have a

         11  complaint certainly we would go out immediately to

         12  do an inspection.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, the MMR

         14  does not provide a special category regarding DOB's

         15  inspections of amusement ride devices, but if you

         16  lump it all together with elevator data, don't you

         17  think it would be better for us to accurately know

         18  what the potentials are for harm and --

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Archie

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If we were to

         22  say that -- well, as I reflect on the question I

         23  don't know how you would do it, because you don't

         24  issue a green card or whatever the permit is until

         25  after you have assured yourself that the device is
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          2  safe.

          3                 Statistically there are about 160

          4  permanent amusement rides, and we inspect those

          5  rides at the beginning of the season, before they

          6  are operated. We instituted some new rules about two

          7  years ago that called for a second inspection, sort

          8  of a mid-season inspection, that after the initial

          9  inspection, no sooner than 90 days, or no later than

         10  120 days after that initial inspection we do a

         11  second inspection. So, on all permanent rides, we

         12  inspect each and every ride two times in the season.

         13                 When it comes to the permanent rides,

         14  and we have no control over how many temporary fairs

         15  will be set up in any given season, and so the

         16  numbers can vary greatly from year to year. But

         17  before any temporary ride is set up, as you know we

         18  inspect it and then we will issue the appropriate

         19  green card for use. And we see often the same

         20  temporary rides almost weekend after weekend, and

         21  when it comes to temporary ride, we are looking at

         22  the same ride perhaps several times during the

         23  season.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What do you call

         25  a temporary ride?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That

          3  is, for instance, if there is a fair at Shea Stadium

          4  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And it stays

          6  there a week or two weeks?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: A week

          8  or two weeks, that is a temporary amusement ride.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And one

         10  inspection initially, based on your experience, is

         11  adequate to reasonably ensure that.

         12                 We inspect it before that ride can

         13  operate at that temporary care.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And you don't

         15  think there is any need to go back next week or --

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VISCONTI: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I mean based on

         18  experience. I am not asking just to do busy work.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VISCONTI: No. We

         20  feel based on the initial inspection that we can

         21  determine whether there is a problem or not. And as

         22  I was saying those rides are moved from fair to fair

         23  so we have to actually touch the ride several times

         24  in a season.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we have done
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          2  an oversight on this. I can recall from our

          3  discussion at the oversight hearing, your amusement

          4  ride inspectors are specifically trained?

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VISCONTI: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And updated on

          8  new mechanisms and devices on a regular basis.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON VISCONTI: Yes, we

         10  now are part of the amusement ride association. We

         11  have annual training for key supervisors who can

         12  then come back and impart that training, and we are

         13  in contact with the state on a regular basis, with

         14  regard to advisories on amusement rides so that when

         15  there is a problem, we are aware of a particular

         16  ride and what the problem is and we participate in

         17  that program also, that if we have a problem, we

         18  make the other jurisdictions aware of the issue.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And I don't

         20  think you receive any resistance from the industry

         21  because they have as much a stake in maintaining the

         22  integrity of their rides. You know, you want to go

         23  on a Ferris wheel, you want to feel reasonably sure

         24  you are going to go up and come down, and I think

         25  you wouldn't be buying a ticket if there was any
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          2  doubt as to that outcome.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: The

          4  amusement industry's number one priority is safety,

          5  and I think we have a good partnership with them in

          6  trying to assure that rides are safe.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          8  Warden, do you have any questions?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Yes, I do.

         10                 Commissioner, the MMR reports that

         11  the Department conducted the necessary annual

         12  construction inspections, that were up there around

         13  1,400 in Fiscal Year '99. Can you tell us how many

         14  construction violations that were issued during that

         15  period of time?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, I

         17  don't have those numbers with me today.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Can you

         19  provide them to the Committee?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Sure, I

         21  would be happy to.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         25  Commissioner Visconti, I think we are almost done.
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          2                 As it relates to the Environmental

          3  Control Board, once a person is issued a violation,

          4  they are given a certain amount of time to correct

          5  that violation; is that correct, sir?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It says the

          9  violation states what the violation is, say no C of

         10  O, correction, get a C of O, right?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That's

         12  correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And if you don't

         14  get the C of O, there comes a time when you go back

         15  either based on another complaint, or how do you

         16  know when to go back to see whether the C of O or

         17  the illegal or the non-conforming use has been

         18  corrected?

         19                 There comes a time when you go back

         20  and it still remains. Does it then go to the

         21  Environmental Control Board?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: If we

         23  don't see that there is a -- that a certificate of

         24  completion has been submitted for the violation,

         25  then we do sweeps with regard to the hazardous
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          2  violations and make sure that if the violation has

          3  not been corrected, that we are there issuing a

          4  second violation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And when the

          6  violation, a second violation is ignored, say you

          7  are given 45 days or 30 days or two weeks, they have

          8  to submit a certificate of correction?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         10  Correction.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The person in

         12  violation. And if you don't receive that certificate

         13  of correction, does it automatically kick in a

         14  summons to the ECB.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         16  that goes to ECB, the certificate of completion.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The certificate

         18  of correction goes to ECB.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Goes to

         20  ECB.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And the

         22  violation, the --

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And

         24  that will dismiss the violation. If the violation

         25  has not been dismissed --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Then ECB sends a

          3  summons?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No.

          5  Then we have to go out and make a second inspection.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, when does it

          7  go to ECB? There comes a time when you summons to

          8  ECB to either show their compliance, or go to trial.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: You

         10  have the hearing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is what I

         12  am talking about, you have the hearing.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: So, if

         14  you don't present the certificate of completion, if

         15  you don't show evidence that you have completed it,

         16  you are fine. And then in order to have that

         17  violation ultimately dismissed, you have to --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Produce the

         19  evidence.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: You

         21  have to produce the evidence, submit the certificate

         22  of completion, otherwise the violation remains open.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But what is the

         24  experience in ECB? Are you satisfied? Do you have

         25  any involvement in the ECB proceedings? Is their
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          2  lawyer there for the Department of Buildings who is

          3  prosecuting these --

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We have

          5  a representative there at each of the hearings, and

          6  often what will happen in certain violations is the

          7  offender will enter into a stipulation with the

          8  judge, because some violations cannot be cured in a

          9  timely way, that it may take several months in order

         10  to correct it, because their architect has to be

         11  hired, plans have to be submitted, contractors hired

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: All of that

         14  comes out at the hearing.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: That

         16  comes out of ECB, and that is part of a stipulated

         17  agreement, to cure that violation, and then it runs

         18  its course in ECB for as to whether they come back

         19  and submit their certificate of correction, or not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are you

         21  satisfied with DOB's involvement and the process

         22  that is now available at ECB? Do you have any

         23  suggestions or complaints regarding ECB experience?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         25  we would always like 100 percent compliance. We
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          2  don't always see 100 percent compliance.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The ECB will

          4  sometimes make decisions that you are not happy

          5  with?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: They

          7  will dismiss violations that we feel should not be

          8  dismissed, so then it forces us to go back out again

          9  and do an inspection and write more violations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you

         11  understand that many of these are complaint driven

         12  and you have some unhappy constituents out there

         13  co-existing with non-conforming situations.

         14                 Council Member Michels.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman. Sorry, I was delayed.

         17                 Which of the violations do you allow

         18  to be responded to by self-certification? Can you

         19  name some of them?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: You are

         21  talking about ECB now?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am talking

         23  about at the Housing Authority, the Housing

         24  Department, Department of Housing, Department of

         25  Buildings. There are certain violations which you
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          2  permit to be removed by means of self-certification.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No, we

          4  don't have any violations that can be removed by

          5  self-certification. The violations we write are

          6  either DOB violations or ECB violations.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: HPD cannot

          8  remove a violation by self-certifying?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, I

         11  wasn't sure, I just wanted to check you on it.

         12                 But you do have certain situations

         13  with respect to elevators and boilers where you can

         14  self certify that you actually are in compliance

         15  with the law.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

         17  do. As part of an acquired inspection or part of

         18  work which is permitted, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Anything

         20  besides boilers and elevators, what other

         21  self-certification --

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         23  the question had been raised previously, councilman.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am sorry I

         25  missed it.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: And we

          3  went through all of the self certification programs

          4  that we have in plant examinations, plumbing --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I won't ask

          6  you any further questions on that, but I would like

          7  to get the list. I am sorry I missed it, I had

          8  something else I had to be at.

          9                 And were you also asked as to whether

         10  or not you have the regular basis of checking on

         11  self-certification?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes,

         13  and we reported on the percentage of certification

         14  that we order.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Of those

         16  self-certifications that you ordered, how many of

         17  them have been found to be falsely certified? What

         18  percentage?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         20  it varies from program to program. I mean --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We want to

         22  evaluate the self-certification program in its

         23  entirety.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I would

         25  say that in general the problem area is less than
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          2  one percent of the self-certified items.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: As opposed to

          4  HPD, which you had reported to us had about a third

          5  of self-certifications.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: No,

          7  ours is very, very small. Very small.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And on that

          9  one percent, what is the disciplinary actions taken,

         10  that has been taken, as far as those people?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

         12  what we do is, if it is a trade that we license, we

         13  will fine the individual, we may revoke their

         14  privileges to self-certify. We may do that for a

         15  six-month period or a year period. We might

         16  permanently deny it. We do the same for architects

         17  and engineers.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you have

         19  done this in the past year?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI:

         21  Absolutely. Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now what

         23  about referring the New York State Licensing Bureau

         24  to have their license --

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: We have
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          2  done that. But the state licenses these individuals,

          3  but they have to discipline --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And this is

          5  well publicized when you do this?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: As a tool to

          9  make sure -- because one percent is a very good

         10  percentage, obviously.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes, we

         12  have a good relationship with the licensing trade in

         13  which in their sort of monthly association bulletins

         14  have a column devoted to this subject, we also reach

         15  out to the professional organizations and ask if

         16  they do the same.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Maybe that is

         18  the reason you got such good compliance.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, thank

         21  you very much. No further questions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, I have to

         23  ask a few generics here.

         24                 Commissioner, are you familiar with

         25  Citywide protocol for E.mail routing, tracking and
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          2  response time?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Could you

          5  describe it for us briefly?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well,

          7  we acknowledge every E.mail that we receive the next

          8  day. The correspondence is then routed to the

          9  appropriate individual to respond to that E.mail. We

         10  have a standing policy on all correspondence that we

         11  reply within two weeks. If we can't comply fully, we

         12  will reach out to the individual, either by

         13  telephone or by letter to indicate that we are

         14  working on the issue, and that we will get a

         15  response back to them as soon as possible.

         16                 You know, the range of inquiries is

         17  quite great. We received over 3,000 E.mails last

         18  year, and the issues raised can be a very simple

         19  question or a very complex issue in which my

         20  technical staff may have to spend consider amount of

         21  time researching to answer that question. But I

         22  think we are dealing with correspondence in a very

         23  timely way, and have an agency-wide correspondence

         24  tracking mechanism so that hopefully we don't have

         25  letters falling between the cracks tracking each

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  piece of correspondence and monitoring that we do

          3  have a timely response to our standards.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How long have

          5  you had this E.mail protocol?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Well, I

          7  would say we started accepting E.mail probably about

          8  18 months ago.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If it is

         10  written, could you provide us with a copy of the

         11  protocol?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         14                 Is the E.mail option televised on

         15  your telephone answering system?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: I don't

         17  believe it is.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: It is

         20  not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         22  Commissioner Visconti, Deputy Barry Cox, Stanley

         23  Shor, Chief of Staff, and Patricia Ketterer, thank

         24  you all for your testimony, and we will be back to

         25  you.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER VISCONTI: Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We are going to

          5  take a brief break in the action, for about two

          6  minutes. I see staff here from the New York City

          7  Housing Authority. Is the Chairman coming? Oh, the

          8  Chairman is here.

          9                 Give us two minutes, okay? We will be

         10  right with you.

         11                 (Recess taken.)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will begin

         13  the second portion of today's Housing and Buildings

         14  Committee hearing on the Mayor's Management Report.

         15  This section is related to the New York City Housing

         16  Authority.

         17                 Chairman Martinez, if you will

         18  identify yourself for the record, and have those

         19  members of your staff and your colleagues who are

         20  there at the table with you to identify themselves,

         21  we will be delighted to receive any information you

         22  want to share with us regarding the Mayor's

         23  Management Report.

         24                 Is the mike on?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. My name is John Martinez, I am the

          3  Chairman of the New York City Housing Authority, and

          4  let me allow my colleagues at the table to introduce

          5  themselves.

          6                 VICE CHAIRMAN ANDREWS: Earl Andrews,

          7  Vice Chairman of the New York City Housing

          8  Authority.

          9                 MR. FINKEL: Kal Finkel, Commissioner

         10  of the New York City Housing Authority.

         11                 MR. GRAZIANO: Paul Graziano, General

         12  Manager of the New York City Housing Authority.

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: And then as you

         14  can see, we have a number of staff here in the

         15  wings, in case there is a question that comes up

         16  that I am not able to answer directly. We have many,

         17  many technical assistants here to ensure that you

         18  get what you need today.

         19                 Chairman Spigner, members of the

         20  Committee, good morning, and thank you for inviting

         21  me to appear before your committee today.

         22                 Detailed information on all of the

         23  issues of concern to us are to be found in the

         24  printed Mayor's Management Report for Fiscal Year

         25  1999. Consequently we will not be able to discuss

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  the entire report in the time allotted today, but of

          3  course we are always happy to answer any questions

          4  you might have.

          5                 This morning I would like to focus on

          6  NYCHA's relationship to our residents and our

          7  commitment to improve their lives.

          8                 There is nothing more important to us

          9  than the well-being and the quality of life to our

         10  600,000 residents. As the quality of life in New

         11  York City has improved over the last six years

         12  during Mayor Giuliani's Administration, so has the

         13  quality of life in our development. Yet, many of our

         14  residents have recently expressed concern because

         15  there is change in store. We believe this change

         16  will be for the better but that view is not always

         17  shared by our residents.

         18                 The 1998 federal housing law requires

         19  public Housing Authorities around the country to

         20  engage in a planning process. Unfortunately, after

         21  months of preparation, and only ten days before we

         22  plan to release a narrative draft for review, HUD

         23  notified Housing Authority that the plan had to be

         24  submitted in a specific format. That format was not

         25  user-friendly and contributed to significant
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          2  misunderstanding.

          3                 A copy of the draft plan was given to

          4  every tenant association present and copies were

          5  made available for public inspection at all

          6  management offices and at nine community centers in

          7  the five boroughs.

          8                 It was also available on the

          9  Internet.

         10                 A number of points need to be

         11  reinforced here today.

         12                 First, there will be no change in the

         13  way that NYCHA determines a family rent.

         14                 Whether a resident is on public

         15  assistance or paying rent based on 30 percent of

         16  family income, or paying a ceiling rent, the system

         17  we now use will remain the same.

         18                 For families with serious financial

         19  problems, including those whose five-year lifetime

         20  public assistance benefits will expire, we will

         21  provide a safety net, a new minimum rent program set

         22  at zero dollars.

         23                 To assist those who moved from

         24  welfare to work we will phase in rent increases

         25  associated with higher family income over a two-year
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          2  period.

          3                 For the future, notwithstanding HUD's

          4  view to the contrary, NYCHA is committed to

          5  preserving ceiling rents.

          6                 At the same time, we are also

          7  committed to a greater mix of incomes in our

          8  developments known as our working family preference.

          9  But contrary to rumor, this does not mean neglect of

         10  the poorest families.

         11                 Based on federal law, we must ensure

         12  that at least 40 percent of the apartments that

         13  become available will be rented to families whose

         14  incomes are no greater than 30 percent of the area

         15  median income. That is about $14,000 for a family of

         16  three.

         17                 In the Section 8 program, poorest

         18  families will get no less than 75 percent of our

         19  turnover.

         20                 Now, pursuant to newly established

         21  federal requirements, we will encourage working

         22  families to move into 41 of our developments that

         23  have the highest concentration of households below

         24  the poverty level. This approach is known as

         25  deconcentration. Another unfounded apprehension
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          2  about the agency plan concerns demolition and sale

          3  of developments. NYCHA is committed to preservation

          4  of its housing stock. The sole exception under the

          5  plan is one building in Brooklyn at Prospect Plaza

          6  that has severe foundation problems. Under the Hope

          7  6 Program, that building will be torn down and

          8  replaced by new townhouses. Not one single unit will

          9  be lost. And any family relocated has an absolute

         10  right to return. That is the total extent of

         11  demolition. No developments are for sale. All other

         12  rumors to the contrary are just that, rumors.

         13                 Under the plan there will be more,

         14  not less housing for the poor. We hope to increase

         15  the number of apartments for the poor by stretching

         16  our existing subsidy. We will enter into long-term

         17  leases for apartments at privately-owned buildings,

         18  what we call master leasing. Applicants will come

         19  off waiting lists and their rents will be calculated

         20  in the same manner as other public housing

         21  residents.

         22                 To reiterate, the working family

         23  preference will not result in the loss of public

         24  housing units or a displacement of residents.

         25                 One last aspect of the plan that has
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          2  led to misinterpretation is the resident advisory

          3  board.

          4                 The composition of this year's

          5  resident advisory board conformed to HUD's

          6  regulations and has been confirmed in writing by

          7  HUD, as meeting those requirements. Notwithstanding

          8  that fact, we will consult in consultation with our

          9  residents, increase the size of the advisory board

         10  for next year's plan.

         11                 When we met last spring, I reported

         12  to you on your community center building and

         13  maintenance program.

         14                 Since then 15 community centers have

         15  been renovated or expanded at a cost of nearly $15

         16  million.

         17                 Currently there are 29 community

         18  centers where work is in progress at an aggregate

         19  cost of over 55 million.

         20                 In total, NYCHA's community center

         21  program will include the expenditure of over $125

         22  million in 82 centers in all five boroughs, serving

         23  not only the residents of NYCHA, but the surrounding

         24  neighborhoods as well.

         25                 As I said last May, and it bears
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          2  repeating, we do not think of these as NYCHA centers

          3  but community centers, for the benefit of the entire

          4  community.

          5                 The second talk of topic this morning

          6  is NYCHA's commitment to improve our residents'

          7  lives. This is perhaps best illustrated by a

          8  conference which took place last month at the New

          9  York Marriott Hotel in Brooklyn, and we were pleased

         10  that Chairman Spigner was able to join us at that

         11  event.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: At least for

         13  dinner.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: At least for

         15  dinner. It made a very positive impression on those

         16  people who were in attendance because there was much

         17  comment the next day about the fact that you were

         18  able to work that into your schedule.

         19                 That conference marked NYCHA's 65th

         20  anniversary, and was entitled Public Housing at the

         21  Crossroads. It was not meant to be a ceremonial

         22  birthday party, but a practical workshop. A day and

         23  a half of intensive exchange of ideas, scholarship,

         24  history and evaluation, all with a view to the

         25  future.
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          2                 As I listen to speaker after speaker

          3  and panel after panel, I became more convinced than

          4  ever that we are truly at a crossroads. While we

          5  must maintain and improve the support we get from

          6  Washington, Albany and New York City, the private

          7  sector must also become a viable partner.

          8                 For example, we have just signed an

          9  agreement with the Coca Cola Bottling Company of New

         10  York. This is a multiyear license agreement to place

         11  vending machines in our developments, and most

         12  importantly to provide jobs with Coca Cola for

         13  qualified residents. Coca Cola has agreed to hold

         14  job fairs to identify residents who might qualify

         15  for jobs ranging from account managers to

         16  merchandisers.

         17                 NYCHA will also receive a percentage

         18  of the annual sales of products sold through the

         19  vending machine. A total of more than a million

         20  dollars of revenue is potentially there.

         21                 We also continue to fulfill our role

         22  as a social service agency in terms of education and

         23  job training. We must send NYCHA residents, I might

         24  even say NYCHA graduates, into the world of work.

         25  NYCHA's Department of Resident Employment
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          2  Initiatives and Training provides training and helps

          3  residents find work.

          4                 The Youth Build Program, in

          5  collaboration with the Board of Education and

          6  contractors at NYCHA sites, provides youngsters with

          7  training leading to union apprenticeship employment

          8  or additional education.

          9                 The Work Experience Program, or WEP,

         10  has also made an enormous difference. Since the

         11  program's inception in November 1996, the Authority

         12  has hired 890 WEP workers. There are currently 705

         13  former WEP workers still employed at the Authority,

         14  and of that number 433 are NYCHA residents.

         15                 The Wildcat limited Work Experience

         16  Program is another point of entry and a gainful

         17  employment for NYCHA residents.

         18                 Participants must have a high school

         19  diploma or GED, and previous work experience.

         20                 They receive on-the-job training four

         21  days a week at the NYCHA central office, and field

         22  locations, and clerical and computer training one

         23  day a week at Wildcat. Wildcat is a non-profit

         24  organization which also provides job placement

         25  assistance to the graduates.
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          2                 Before I conclude, I would be remiss

          3  if I did not bring one additional matter to your

          4  attention, Y2K. Preparing NYCHA for the transition

          5  to the Year 2000 has been as complex and extensive

          6  as it would be for a medium-sized city.

          7                 We have identified, certified and

          8  tested our critical business processes, our building

          9  systems, including elevators, heating, security and

         10  lighting, for Y2K compliance.

         11                 We have also sought assurances from

         12  our primary vendors, such as utility companies, that

         13  they are Y2K compliant as well.

         14                 Most experts do not anticipate any

         15  major system outtages, but we cannot rule out the

         16  possibility of specific service interruption. In an

         17  effort to minimize any disruption, the Authority has

         18  developed contingency plans to maintain essential

         19  services at our developments in the event of a

         20  Y2K-related failure.

         21                 These plans specify that adequate

         22  staff will be present throughout the exchange to the

         23  new millennium at all NYCHA developments and at our

         24  main offices.

         25                 We have advised our residents that it
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          2  is a good idea for every household to take the same

          3  precautions they would take in the event of a major

          4  winter storm.

          5                 Additional information will be made

          6  available from the Housing Authority Journal, which

          7  is distributed monthly to all residents. We are also

          8  distributing 220,000 brochures, which have been

          9  prepared by the Mayor's Office of Emergency

         10  Management.

         11                 With that, let me again thank you for

         12  inviting us here today, and as always, we are happy

         13  to answer any questions you have on these or any

         14  other issues.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         16  Chairman Martinez. And I thank you for inviting me

         17  to the dinner as well, it was nice of you.

         18                 As it relates to Coke, I like Pepsi.

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They are going to

         20  provide more than just Coca Cola.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How did you

         22  determine --

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Fruit juice --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How did you

         25  determine? Did you hold an RFP? Competition?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We did a

          3  reach-out. We did actually reach out to the various

          4  distributors of softdrink products, and Coca Cola

          5  was the only one that expressed an interest in

          6  participating, and perhaps that is based on the fact

          7  that Coca Cola has changed its philosophy. They now

          8  own and operate the distributorships. The other

          9  softdrink manufacturers have third parties that own

         10  the distributorship.

         11                 Consequently Coke was the only one

         12  that could come in and make a commitment to hire our

         13  residents because they control the entire process.

         14  The other manufacturers could not commit their

         15  jobbers, their distributors, to making that level of

         16  commitment, and that is how, through that RFP

         17  process Coca Cola was found to be the most

         18  responsive, because our primary goal was to generate

         19  jobs for our residents.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Based on that I

         21  may start to like Coke as well.

         22                 On page 57, volume II, agency

         23  Citywide indicators, Mayor's Management Report,

         24  1999, it says just in one of the footnotes, page 57,

         25  in one of the footnotes, footnote C. These are
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          2  footnotes, right, A, B, C?

          3                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Over the last

          5  two fiscal years, ten buildings were sold to

          6  residents as co-ops, and 88 primarily vacant

          7  single-family homes were sold to private developers.

          8  Now, this is the first I have ever heard of NYCHA

          9  co-oping. It is the first time I ever heard of it.

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Actually, I

         11  believe we did discuss this at the last hearing, and

         12  I may be mistaken but I know that --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Excuse me. NYCHA

         14  is talking of a co-oping pilot program or

         15  environment co-oping, NYCHA developments?

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Maybe I am

         17  hallucinating.

         18                 Let me illuminate on what we are

         19  doing. About five years ago HUD provided some Hope

         20  III funds. Those funds were made available to create

         21  home ownership opportunities. We, in working with

         22  the City, identified some developments that would

         23  lend themselves to creating home ownership

         24  opportunities.

         25                 We have about I believe it is 750
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          2  units in total that are in this pilot program. The

          3  first development was actually a development that

          4  had never been occupied, it was a series of vacant

          5  buildings that were acquired from the City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me ask you a

          7  question.

          8                 The 108th Street Project, in Forest

          9  Hills, is that connected with NYCHA?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is one of our

         11  developments, it is a cooperative development that

         12  was created --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: To resolve a

         14  political and social problem. So that is a co-op.

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That is a co-op.

         16  It is a co-op that is not a pure co-op, because

         17  there are rental units in there as well. It is

         18  really more of a hybrid. What we are trying to do

         19  with this pilot initiative is to the degree possible

         20  create a true home ownership structure in which the

         21  individuals who buy into the co-op not only will

         22  control the corporation that owns the co-op, but

         23  they then will make the decisions, they will be

         24  responsible for hiring a private management company,

         25  for making decisions on how much they are going to
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          2  assess themselves for the improvements of the

          3  development, et cetera. But to get to that point,

          4  what we did was take monies that were made available

          5  by HUD, and go in and rehab these buildings so they

          6  were in fact at an acceptable level for a home

          7  ownership program.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, Chairman

          9  Martinez, I am asking for an opportunity to meet

         10  with you, or whoever it is that is the expert in

         11  this, because I need to be made more knowledgeable

         12  as to the extent of the program that exists and

         13  where it has gone. Because they are always in my

         14  district in particular, a lot of paranoid people

         15  that the South Jamaica project is going to be sold

         16  and this and that, they are going to put the poor

         17  people out, and we need to know about this so we can

         18  answer them. So, you will be in touch with me?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Absolutely, we

         20  will set it up.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And any member

         22  who wants to be a part of that will be notified of

         23  that meeting?

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Because in a

         25  similar vain you mentioned these FHA single-family
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          2  homes, those are homes that were actually foreclosed

          3  upon by HUD years ago. They have been vacant, they

          4  become eyesores, they become attractive nuisances.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Chairman

          6  Martinez, you have touched a particularly sore point

          7  with this chairman, particularly sore. And I caught

          8  your guy in Baisley Park, I met him at the event, at

          9  the dinner, and he did not return my call. You

         10  should know that I am annoyed by that.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: After the meeting

         12  if you would give me the name and phone number --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I called him

         14  over a week ago about 107-05 Ruscoe Street, which

         15  has been sitting there, it predates your

         16  Chairmanship. Here is a house, now Mrs. Miller lives

         17  at 107-01, all of her children were raised in

         18  107-01, and one daughter bought 107-03, now 107 was

         19  foreclosed on, FHA or HUD, whatever, and the other

         20  daughter wants to buy 107-03 Ruscoe Street. Your

         21  agency has control of the building, doing nothing

         22  with it. Mrs. Miller -- and I am not going to blame

         23  you completely, because I have been to people in

         24  HUD, trying to convince them. But I need your -- and

         25  I saw your guy at the dinner, what's his name? He is
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          2  in charge of this program?

          3                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Are you talking

          4  about Jim Miller?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Kind of chubby

          6  white guy.

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's not Jim

          8  Miller.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I didn't say the

         10  average white guy.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Mr. Miller is in

         12  charge of the program, and so I am not sure who you

         13  are referring to. But at any rate --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: He works out of

         15  Baisley Houses.

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am sure I know

         17  who you are talking about, but the reality is that

         18  we get calls on a regular basis about people,

         19  individuals who would like to buy some of these

         20  homes, but because they are under a federal program,

         21  we have a statutorily required process that must be

         22  followed. We cannot, unfortunately, negotiate

         23  directly with a landlord who may be right next door.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I understand

         25  that, Chairman Martinez.
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          2                 Now, speaking to your guy, whose name

          3  slips me now, he tells me the reason, one of the

          4  main reasons why this program, this building has not

          5  moved, is because the two-bedroom house and those

          6  are hard to encourage some of your NYCHA tenants to

          7  move into, and Mrs. Miller's daughter wants the

          8  two-bedroom house.

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I understand what

         10  you are saying. And I am happy to look into it

         11  personally, but I will caution you that given the

         12  federal requirements it is very difficult for us to

         13  just make an exception.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will work

         15  together.

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I will personally

         17  look into it and get back to you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I spoke to Mrs.

         19  Miller this morning, she said to see if I would be

         20  talking to you.

         21                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Absolutely, we

         22  will personally look into it and I will give you a

         23  definitive answer by next week.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         25  Michels -- Nelson. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Michels, and

          3  Miller, I get a complex. Allow me to become

          4  parochial for a moment too.

          5                 In my area, there is a lady who is 80

          6  something in a wheelchair, and she did not want

          7  refurbishing, if you will, of her kitchen, which is

          8  admirably you are doing the job or you are making

          9  life easier for the residents, in her case she

         10  doesn't want it. I am not sure if she doesn't feel

         11  well, I don't know what her exact mental status is,

         12  or physically, I know, or psychologically how she is

         13  dealing with this issue. I know of course when you

         14  reconstruct and you improve there is a unit involved

         15  and a contract that has this, but is there any room

         16  for flexibility with that? If she wanted it

         17  bypassed, maybe jump over her and do others? I am

         18  not sure how ill she is, so I don't know if this is

         19  like waiting out the rest of her days, God forbid.

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I can tell you we

         21  have had instances in the past where for a variety

         22  of reasons someone did not want us to come in and we

         23  have tried to accommodate. The issue is often going

         24  to be whether or not bypassing that will create

         25  serious problems. Because often when we get to the
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          2  point to do the rehab, Departments really need to

          3  have the rehab and we don't want to leave somebody

          4  in a substandard apartment, because when we get

          5  inspected by HUD, that will be counted against us,

          6  notwithstanding the wishes of the resident.

          7                 But if you can give us additional

          8  information, I will be happy to look into it and

          9  will do everything that is reasonably possible to

         10  try to accommodate her.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I appreciate

         12  it. Just to see if it does fall into that category

         13  that will not set off the entire project.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thanks.

         16                 How many units, by the way, does

         17  NYCHA have, which it gives priority, rather, to

         18  individuals with disabilities? And are they all

         19  being used at the present time?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We have now

         21  completed 4,983 504 eligible apartments out of 9,100

         22  that we are required under our compliance agreement

         23  with HUD to renovate. And we have actually,

         24  fortunately, now reached the point where we have a

         25  waiting list of people to get in.
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          2                 You may know that when we first began

          3  this program we were having difficulty,

          4  notwithstanding our efforts to reach out to groups

          5  throughout the City, we were having difficulty

          6  identifying people who were physically handicapped

          7  and interested in the apartments, but we now have a

          8  waiting list for those apartments.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Are they given

         10  priority, people with disabilities?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We have a separate

         12  list. The individuals who are handicapped who

         13  qualify for the 504 are treated separate from

         14  individuals on the main waiting list.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Are they

         16  current NYCHA residents or are these new applicants?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, we first

         18  would give priority to NYCHA residents, but most of

         19  these are actually new applicants, people who are

         20  coming from outside.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: About how many

         22  people approximately are on a holding pattern.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am not sure how

         24  many we have.

         25                 I can get you that answer. You can
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          2  appreciate it is kind of a shifting target so I

          3  don't know specifically, but I will get that answer

          4  for you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: There is

          6  priority given, I would imagine, for people in that

          7  situation.

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It is a rumor

         10  that elderly and the disabled are being displaced

         11  out of Section 8 housing; is there any truth to

         12  this?

         13                 MR. MARTINEZ: I have never heard

         14  this, no. We are not trying to get anybody out of

         15  any of the housing we have.

         16                 If somebody leaves it will be because

         17  of their own personal issue, not because of anything

         18  that we are doing.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Is there a

         20  limitation on the number of years to get a section 8

         21  voucher?

         22                 MR. MARTINEZ: Well, the Section 8

         23  program is a time limited program, not from the

         24  perspective of the person who is renting, but from

         25  the perspective of the funding provided by the
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          2  federal government.

          3                 You may know that when this program

          4  began, the contracts that were executed with Housing

          5  Authority were often 15, 20, 25 year contracts. They

          6  are now all down to a one-year contract. So, it is

          7  appropriations issues.

          8                 But once our residents are in

          9  housing, we don't set a time limitation on how long

         10  you can live there, it is all subject to the

         11  availability of funding. And so I don't know where

         12  the rumor came from but there is no truth to our

         13  making any effort to eliminate anybody.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And finally,

         15  from what category of people is NYCHA still

         16  accepting applications?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, under the

         18  Section 8 program we are not. That list has been

         19  closed since I believe 1989.

         20                 The list in terms of new

         21  applications, we have three very high priorities for

         22  both Section 8 and public housing that we currently

         23  use that is City-referred homeless out of the

         24  shelter system, intimidated witnesses who are

         25  participating in the criminal prosecution and have
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          2  been threatened, and domestic violence victims.

          3                 We find today that generally with

          4  that, those three priorities and the amount of

          5  available units are coming either through the

          6  Section 8 program or through public housing, that we

          7  can pretty much hit what is available with that.

          8                 Now, I make a couple of caveats: One

          9  being that as you know we have a working family

         10  preference. That working family preference states

         11  that for every two vacancy, one goes to a working

         12  family, one goes to people off the waiting list. So

         13  you can see that the number of units that we are

         14  making available to individuals who meet those three

         15  criteria has been reduced. But that is why I

         16  mentioned in the testimony the Master Lease Program.

         17  What we are trying to ensure is that we will

         18  continue to provide 181,000 subsidized units, and

         19  that is really the operative term, subsidized.

         20                 Those units may not always be in a

         21  building owned by the Housing Authority, but by

         22  contract they will legally be public housing,

         23  subject to all the federal requirements and also

         24  eligible for funding that is provided by HUD for

         25  modernization and other things.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It may be

          3  bucking up against certain agencies, but is there

          4  any provision set at all for people say having to be

          5  drug tested prior to getting into public housing?

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, we haven't

          7  reached the point of doing drug testing but we have

          8  a very stringent review process. We do criminal

          9  background checks on not only applicants coming in

         10  for both the Section 8 program and public housing,

         11  but also on residents who are looking to transfer

         12  from one development to another.

         13                 We also do, for those coming from

         14  outside, a home visit, and we do a landlord check,

         15  and a failure in one of those three categories will

         16  likely result in your not being accepted into either

         17  public housing or the Section 8 program.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Because more

         19  important, toilets that don't flush or other type of

         20  heating calls even, while I have had those in

         21  Sheepshead Nostrand Houses, by the way. But the

         22  major cry out is of course drug-related activities

         23  going on and the danger therein to the public. This

         24  is a prime concern.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          3                 Council Member Warden.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

          5  much, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We have been

          7  joined also by Council Member Reed from Manhattan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: I want to go

          9  to another area. The working families program, there

         10  has been some concern and there has been some legal

         11  action. There is a case pending, Davis versus the

         12  New York City Housing Authority, which challenged

         13  the agency's policy on granting the preference for

         14  working families; can you bring us up to date as to

         15  what is happening with that case?

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Certainly.

         17                 You may know that when we received

         18  HUD approval for the working family preference, we

         19  were immediately sued by a number of organizations.

         20                 After two years of litigation, the

         21  courts indicated that we were authorized to

         22  implement the program, in all but 21 developments

         23  which were covered by the Davis Decree. We did

         24  appeal that decision, indicating that we did not

         25  believe that it was an accurate depiction as to the
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          2  actual impact the working family preference would

          3  have. We were denied that appeal, so currently the

          4  working family preference applied throughout the

          5  City with the exception of the 21 Davis sites that

          6  were identified.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They are still

          9  separate.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay.

         11                 In terms of the construction goals --

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am sorry, the

         13  what?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Your

         15  construction goals.

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: There was a

         18  goal of 13 units being constructed for Fiscal Year

         19  '99, how close are we to that?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I understand that

         21  the land is being transferred from the City to the

         22  Housing Authority so that we can begin construction

         23  on Stanton Street Development, and --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that a

         25  multiple dwelling or townhouses?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: This is a

          3  multi-family dwelling.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Small.

          5                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Pardon?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Very small.

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, it is. But

          8  it is a very unique program designed for people with

          9  immunological disorders of a degenerative nature,

         10  and it was a very long, drawn-out process that

         11  involved negotiations with HUD, it involved

         12  negotiations with an architect that had designed the

         13  program and then ran into some financial

         14  difficulties and we were to acquire his design work.

         15  It has been a very, very lengthy process, but the

         16  closing is going to occur on Monday for the land and

         17  then we are going to be able to move toward --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Where is it

         19  located?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is on the lower

         21  east side, the exact address I couldn't give you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is in proximity

         24  to the Henry Street Settlement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member
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          2  Michels, you have a question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You are doing

          4  some rehabilitation of apartments to comply with the

          5  law with respect to disabled people, and therefore

          6  you have a number of units, and this is a revolving

          7  situation, the number of units which are currently

          8  listed as vacant; what is that number to date?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, it is an

         10  evolving number, because what we do --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know it is

         12  just a flash or a window at one time, but as of

         13  today, how many of those apartments are listed as

         14  vacant?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: What do we have

         16  vacant today? About 2,000 are currently vacant in

         17  various developments related to 504.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: My

         19  recollection is in the past years it was many, many

         20  more apartments.

         21                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, there were,

         22  but you may have noted when I was speaking earlier,

         23  that we now have completed 4,983 504 apartments.

         24  Those are demmed (sic) or occupied. And what we are

         25  looking at is moving towards 9,100 of which 2,000
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          2  are currently off the roll and being put through

          3  various stages leading to the construction. They may

          4  be in the architectural engineering stage, they may

          5  be actually under construction, it is a moving

          6  number.

          7                 But what we try to do at each

          8  development where we are going to create a pool of

          9  904 apartments is to --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: 504, right?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am sorry, 504.

         12  Is to set aside a number of apartments to create the

         13  economy of scale that will keep the overall

         14  development cost at the lowest possible level when

         15  we go out and hire contractors to come in and do the

         16  work.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: These

         18  apartments are suitable for disabled people but are

         19  not necessarily rented to disabled people.

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, currently we

         21  have a waiting list of people who are in fact

         22  physically handicapped who are desirous of moving

         23  into these developments.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They live in

         25  other apartments in the building or in developments?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Many of them are

          3  coming from outside of our developments right now.

          4  That one thing that is occurring as we go through

          5  this process is that as we have the units available,

          6  we immediately reach out and start bringing the

          7  people in. We are not keeping them vacant for

          8  extended periods of time. The only time that we are

          9  keeping them vacant is when we need to accumulate a

         10  sufficient number to do the construction and

         11  complete the work. When the work is completed we are

         12  not waiting for the entire development to be

         13  completed, we begin to roll them out as they are

         14  completed individually.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I think that

         16  point has to be made to the people who are studying

         17  the vacancy in the City of New York, because these

         18  are apartments even though they may technically be

         19  vacant, are already pledged, or you have got people

         20  to put into these apartments, and they shouldn't be

         21  counted as vacant apartments in your study to

         22  determine whether or not we have sufficient agencies

         23  --

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They are not

         25  counted as part of the count.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am talking

          3  about there is a study that is made every year --

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, I understand.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: -- Where we

          6  determine the vacancy rate for rent controlled or

          7  stabilized apartments.

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I understand what

          9  you are referring to. We do not have these units

         10  included --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They have

         12  counted them in the past as being vacant.

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We are trying to

         14  ensure that they don't, because we put them in a

         15  separate category because normally if an apartment

         16  is considered vacant, it means that it is actually

         17  available and not occupied, and these apartments are

         18  not available for occupancy, period, so we take them

         19  completely out of our system. We do not view them as

         20  viable --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I agree with

         22  you 100 percent. But in the past they had been --

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, I understand.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And it has

         25  had a bad effect.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We made a

          3  significant attempt to ensure that when we report,

          4  that we only report those units that are actually

          5  viable and can be occupied and not units that are

          6  under construction. It is not just the 504 --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am looking

          8  forward to seeing that reflected in the next report

          9  which comes up.

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We will absolutely

         11  check. But our Research Department has been very

         12  careful, as has our capital program area to ensure

         13  that when we take these units off, they are off the

         14  role entirely and not available for rental.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Councilman Reed,

         18  you had a question?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 Good morning. I am sorry, I am sure

         22  that many more of my colleagues would like to be

         23  here, it is one of those days where there is an

         24  awful lot of things pulling us, even as committed as

         25  we are, and I wanted to take an opportunity to
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          2  publicly acknowledge how pleased I have been with

          3  may ability to interact with NYCHA at the highest

          4  levels about both fundamental questions, tenant

          5  issues and philosophical questions. So, it is a

          6  pleasure to be here but one of my new colleagues is

          7  just being sworn in, so that has been the main draw

          8  today, as well as some other meetings.

          9                 I was just curious, and this is

         10  rather superficial, unfortunately, on my part

         11  because I haven't really had a chance to read this,

         12  but one of the biggest issues that comes up in my

         13  office, and I am going to take the liberty to ask

         14  that sort of parochial question because I think that

         15  it concerns many of us, are the issue of transfers

         16  within NYCHA.

         17                 And there are many new plans put in

         18  place, some of which I think make sense. I am not

         19  unopposed to -- I am not necessarily opposed, I

         20  should say, to this concept of deconcentration, but

         21  we find it is very difficult to assist people with

         22  transfers in any genuinely timely fashion, if people

         23  who have really significant issues of overcrowding,

         24  or families that need to be separated because

         25  perhaps the child is not quite an adult and has
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          2  their own children and qualified for NYCHA or there

          3  are medical issues. I mean, yet still we are seeing

          4  waiting lists when we know that there are actually

          5  vacant apartments. So, could you just tell me what

          6  the philosophy or how that is sort of seen in NYCHA?

          7  And perhaps is the issue because of the

          8  centralization of how apartments are reassigned?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Actually the

         10  question is very timely. We have in the last three

         11  weeks been reviewing our tenant selection and

         12  assignment plan, which was created five years ago.

         13                 That plan was mandated by litigation

         14  as a completely objective system that would prevent

         15  any kind of steering of where people were going to

         16  live.

         17                 We have been looking at the current

         18  priorities and in the current priorities, the two

         19  specific cases that you described, families that are

         20  overcrowded because they have grown, and issues

         21  related to health have not really been given the

         22  highest priority in terms of transfer.

         23                 The plan is being modified in

         24  accordance with this five-year planning process that

         25  we have with HUD, and in fact we are creating a new
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          2  priority for families that are doubled up, and we

          3  are adding categories that relate to reasonable

          4  accommodations for individuals who have

          5  health-related issues and can be viewed in the

          6  context of that health-related issue creating a

          7  disability. So that we are trying to correct that.

          8                 It is something that we have

          9  recognized in the last year and are moving toward

         10  trying to create a new opportunity for these folks.

         11                 The unfortunate thing about the

         12  transfer process is that often what will limit

         13  individuals is when they want to go to a certain

         14  area, because we find there are many people who

         15  would like to transfer in Manhattan, or even coming

         16  off of our waiting list want to live in Manhattan.

         17                 We have the lowest turnover in

         18  Manhattan of any of the five boroughs. Consequently,

         19  if that is where they want to go, it could be months

         20  before an appropriate sized apartment becomes

         21  available where they want to be, notwithstanding the

         22  fact that they may have a very high priority.

         23                 So, what we are trying to do as part

         24  of this revision is also make sure that our

         25  residents, as well as applicants, are aware that if
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          2  they were to decide to change the borough that they

          3  want to reside in, it may enhance their ability to

          4  get into housing more quickly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Chairman

          8  Martinez, I am looking at page 55 of the Mayor's

          9  Management Report, Volume II, where he talks about

         10  total employees. Total employees, 1999, plan 14,442,

         11  actual 14,780, and it doesn't separate. Did you ever

         12  separate social -- now, you do a tremendous amount

         13  of social services, I think you do more social

         14  service work than you do housing work, or as much,

         15  or competing, which is the one that gets the most

         16  attention; do you think it would be helpful for us

         17  to know who actually is doing housing maintenance

         18  and housing-related work, and those that are doing

         19  senior citizens, and youth and job training, and

         20  education and recreation and culture, do you think

         21  that would be helpful?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: If the Committee

         23  would like to have a more detailed breakdown so that

         24  we can talk about how many are care-takers and how

         25  many are social workers, we can certainly--
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That would be

          3  helpful in us being able to conclude or draw an

          4  accurate picture as to what is going on.

          5                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I think one thing

          6  that is very clear is that about almost 11,500 to

          7  12,000 of our total employee base is actually out in

          8  the field. The individuals that are directly

          9  involved in the 344 developments that we have out

         10  there.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Cleaning and

         12  maintaining and painting and all of the above, okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Mr. Chair, I am

         14  sorry.

         15                 What did you say? I missed those

         16  numbers.

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is about 11,500

         18  of our total employee base is actually out in the

         19  field.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What is the

         21  total employee base?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is just right

         23  at 15,000.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Oh.

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I only know that
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          2  because we just had a series of meetings with all of

          3  our employees and I can tell you what it looks like

          4  to stand before 5,500 people at a time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is another

          6  issue, Mr. Chairman, that we are going to have to

          7  get some clarification on, the numbers seem to be

          8  somewhat confusing as to who is doing housing work,

          9  who is doing social work and what the total of the

         10  two add up to, and how it compares to last year. So

         11  that is another bit of information that we will be

         12  in touch.

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We will absolutely

         14  give you the breakdown. I can tell you that the

         15  total number employees is slightly higher this year

         16  than it was last year when it was reported to you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me ask you

         18  another question, as it relates to rent.

         19                 Again, on page 55, it says that the

         20  average plan for rent is $250 per month, that is the

         21  average rent. What it actually costs you, $600 or

         22  $1,100 a month, and the difference between that is

         23  made up through the various state and federal

         24  sources, correct?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, it is not

          3  correct.

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The theory is

          5  correct, the practice is not.

          6                 On the federal side we in fact have a

          7  formula that we use that adds up all of the income,

          8  all of the expenses, the difference between the two

          9  is the amount of money that we are supposed to

         10  receive from the federal government.

         11                 If the congress has appropriated

         12  sufficient funds to pay out at the full level, then

         13  that is what we will receive. That hasn't been the

         14  case and it has fluctuated over the last several

         15  years. So that what we get sometimes is close to 100

         16  percent, sometimes it is not and it is difficult to

         17  predict where they are going to be.

         18                 On the state side, you may be aware

         19  that the Governor three years ago made a decision to

         20  quit paying subsidy to the State financed public

         21  housing around the state, so that we are now losing

         22  $10 million a year in state subsidy.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How do you make

         24  it up? With great difficulty.

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We haven't made it
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          2  up. We are actually suing the Governor to insist

          3  that he live up to his financial obligation, but it

          4  creates a very real stress on those developments

          5  because they don't have other sources of income that

          6  would allow them to, you know, make sure they can

          7  maintain their properties, there are no other

          8  capital dollars coming in from the state, it makes

          9  it a very difficult situation. And, so, we are

         10  monitoring that very closely because it may come to

         11  a head and we may have to look at drastic measures

         12  to try to address that continuing loss of funding.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, about

         14  three quarters down the page, it talks about total

         15  rent delinquency rate.

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, you planned

         18  for 4.5 percent, and the actual experience was 4.9

         19  percent or 5 percent, how does that compare with

         20  private industry in 95 percent collection rate?

         21                 Is that on average with what --

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: There is a

         23  difference between delinquency and collection. We

         24  actually collect 98 percent of the rent that is due

         25  to us. The delinquency really is people buying time
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          2  before they actually pay. They may go 30, 60, 90

          3  days and they may not make the payment until we

          4  actually take legal action telling them we are going

          5  to remove them for non-payment, and then they come

          6  up with the money.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How does this 98

          8  percent rate compare with private industry, private

          9  real estate?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is very, very

         11  competitive. I would venture to say there are many

         12  privately-owned developments that don't have that

         13  enviable record.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, coming

         15  right below it says, tenants on subsidy, they have a

         16  delinquency rate of actual five percent, 5.1

         17  percent. Tenants on subsidies, is there an

         18  assumption that that is someone who is on public

         19  assistance?

         20                 Do you have Section 8 tenants in your

         21  building.

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, we don't have.

         23  Except we do own some Section 8 buildings where the

         24  Section 8 subsidy is attached to the building, it is

         25  not attached to the resident, so it is a very small
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          2  number, so that is not what we are talking about.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But for this

          4  discussion it says "Among tenants receiving public

          5  rent subsidies" --

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That really is

          7  designed to talk about the fact that we do have

          8  working families that receive no subsidies.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So it is not a

         10  two-party check situation?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. A

         13  two-party check, you getting 100 percent of a

         14  two-party -- there probably is situations where

         15  there is a check made directly to NYCHA for the

         16  rent; is that correct?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: There are many

         18  instances like that, and there are also instances

         19  where the check is made directly to the residents

         20  and then we have to rely on the resident to pay the

         21  rent.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         23                 Now, I see you had actually planned

         24  for a 16,738 court appearances and you did almost

         25  20,000, does that account for the reduction in the
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          2  rent delinquencies?

          3                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, that is a

          4  big part of it.

          5                 I hate to admit that part of the way

          6  that we are able to have a 98 percent rent

          7  collection is that we are very aggressive when

          8  people don't pay their rent about initiating a legal

          9  process. And for our residents it is often the cash

         10  flow issues. They are trading where they are going

         11  to pay bills, knowing that we are not going to be

         12  able to move as quickly as private landlords can

         13  because the administrative procedures that we have

         14  to follow, consequently they can buy time before

         15  they actually end up making their rent payments

         16  often.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 Let me move now to another area.

         19                 That program to attract police

         20  officers, NYCHA again failed its goal to place 57

         21  officers in 29 developments in Fiscal '99. You did

         22  only 48. This year the MMR says you are looking to

         23  place 200 officers in 200 developments. Is there

         24  really any value in trying to focus on police

         25  officers? Why not focus on accountants? Why not
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          2  focus on quieter people? I mean, why not focus on

          3  school teachers?

          4                 I mean, do you really think a guy

          5  that is going to go in there and wear his badge when

          6  he is going out to put the garbage out and carry his

          7  gun? I mean, how do you separate police from working

          8  families? And seeing the numbers, it doesn't appear

          9  to be achieving the results. And this predates your

         10  ascension to the chair.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is important to

         12  note that this is a program that the Police

         13  Department asked us to consider, and in fact the

         14  increase to 200 was initiated at the request of

         15  Chief Dunne before he was promoted to Chief of

         16  Department.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We believe that

         19  there are substantial advantages to having a police

         20  officer and it could very easily be any number of

         21  professional individuals living there.

         22                 But one of the advantages of having a

         23  police officer is that it will underscore for our

         24  residents that their developments that they believe

         25  have some level of drug activity or criminal
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          2  activity that the police view them as being as safe

          3  and that they are willing to take their own families

          4  and live there, and that sends a very powerful

          5  message to the residents, because as you are

          6  probably aware, crime is down in housing

          7  developments at a level that is lower than the rest

          8  of the City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I agree with the

         10  police presence, as well as residents -- on the

         11  other page, the number of working families has been

         12  reduced from -- does anyone know the number, from 36

         13  percent, to 32, you are down two points.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We used to be at

         15  about 30 percent working families, we are up to 38

         16  percent working families now. We are actually going

         17  in the other direction. There hasn't been a

         18  reduction.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It must be what

         20  you are looking for and where you are, something

         21  like that.

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, trying to

         23  find working families and bring them in, considering

         24  we did not, until we were able to resolve the

         25  litigation, have a separate waiting list. We didn't
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          2  have --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You are at 38

          4  percent working families now?

          5                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's is correct.

          6                 Our goal is to reach 50 percent

          7  working families.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You said there

          9  is a federal mandate for 48 percent -- for 40

         10  percent?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, there is --

         12  what you are talking about when I talked in the

         13  testimony about 40 percent is that we are required

         14  under the federal housing law that was enacted last

         15  year to ensure that no less than 40 percent of our

         16  vacancies in public housing will go to people who

         17  earn less than 30 percent of the median income, and

         18  so we will be doing that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. I assume a

         20  working family is a person who doesn't receive any

         21  -- is a person who is not dependent on social

         22  services. I mean, the woman who goes to work and

         23  sustains herself independent of the welfare system.

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We have a slightly

         25  broader definition because we have included seniors
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          2  in our definition of working families as well, as

          3  those --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Even though they

          5  don't work, they have got pensions and --

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They generally

          7  have a fixed source of income, be that from the

          8  Social Security system, SSI, some of them are

          9  fortunate to also have a pension or a retirement

         10  fund and because they have affixed a fine source of

         11  income, we have included them in the definition of

         12  working families.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I support

         14  the philosophy of encouraging a greater economic mix

         15  in development because we know from experience it is

         16  not far removed from here what has occurred when

         17  there becomes an over concentration of dependent

         18  tenants, it just doesn't work.

         19                 Council Member Reed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Would you be

         21  able to supply us with a written definition of

         22  working families?

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I am reading

         25  this and it sounds good, but you have added that
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          2  component there, so you will be able to give that to

          3  us?

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Without question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Just in terms of

          6  the seniors, I think what I heard the Chair trying

          7  to figure out, which I am trying to understand,

          8  working families does not assume that they are not

          9  getting some form of subsidy for rental assistance,

         10  even though they are working; is that right?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct. It

         12  is a question of how much subsidy they will be paid,

         13  as individuals earn slightly more and more above the

         14  30 percent, which is about where we are now seeing

         15  people coming in, when they get to about, I believe

         16  it is 53 percent of the area median income, they

         17  actually do no longer need a subsidy because 30

         18  percent of that income actually brings them to the

         19  ceiling rent that they have.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, that math

         21  is a little trickier than I am going to try to do it

         22  12:30 this afternoon. So, there is a cut-off point,

         23  you will give us that definition?

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We will give you

         25  the definition.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What I am trying

          3  to figure out at what level we are still subsidizing

          4  working families, so therefore what is that

          5  definition, and when you say families, what do you

          6  also mean by families?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That is all in the

          8  definition.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         12  Michels, do you have a question?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. I will

         14  put on my other hat for a moment as Chair of the

         15  Environmental Committee. Let me just see what

         16  progress we are making in converting your diesel

         17  engine vehicles or gas engine vehicles to compressed

         18  natural gas, to CNG, so that we can comply with the,

         19  more better comply with the Clean Air Act.

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I must confess,

         21  that is not something that I had anticipated being

         22  prepared to respond to. I will have to get you that

         23  answer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, well, I

         25  would like to get some answers on that, on that
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          2  particular issue. And also, the other issue of

          3  course is something that has come up year after

          4  year, and that is better accountability, as far as

          5  recycling is concerned in the Housing Authority

          6  buildings. I know it is a difficult thing to do but

          7  we want a really aggressive -- your predecessor and

          8  I have had many discussions on this -- more

          9  aggressiveness on the part of the Housing Authority

         10  in order to separate recyclable materials.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We in fact

         12  discussed that very issue at a meeting we had this

         13  past week, trying to identify ways that we might be

         14  able to encourage our residents to recycle more by

         15  creating some incentives for them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Getting a

         17  handle on how much you really are recycling, the

         18  numbers you really are recycling, the tonnage.

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The tonnage, I can

         20  get you that number. I can tell you that it is not

         21  nearly what we would have hoped it would be. It will

         22  be certainly far less than you will find in many

         23  communities in the City, and there are a lot of

         24  variables that contribute to that and we are trying

         25  to find ways to change, because it is not just where
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          2  we place the bins for recycling, because we have

          3  done everything we can to try to bring them as close

          4  to our residents as is humanly possible.

          5                 It is also an education process with

          6  our residents and that is why we are hoping some

          7  sort of an incentive program will underscore the

          8  importance of this, particularly when they see there

          9  will be a benefit that will accrue back to their

         10  development by adhering to the recycling standards.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well,

         12  further, we are approaching a time that is going to

         13  be -- I am not going to use the word crisis, but a

         14  very important time in the City when we are closing

         15  down Freshkills, which very shortly we are going to

         16  start shipping our garbage out by sanitation trucks

         17  and are going to involve heavy use of traffic, a lot

         18  of traffic congestion and other things, and the more

         19  we recycle, the less we have to ship out, so it is

         20  really important to do that. I do know you have had

         21  a problem over the years, because when these

         22  buildings were built, there wasn't sufficient space

         23  provided in many of them for garbage, and you have

         24  been building some of these sheds, for want of a

         25  better word, in order to accommodate what progress
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          2  is being made building these sheds to accommodate

          3  your --

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am sorry,

          5  actually it is our compactor program, and what we do

          6  is we identify an area where we can put in the

          7  compactor and then fence it in and through

          8  landscaping mitigate the visual impact that we have.

          9                 I am not sure how many we have

         10  completed, we have done a substantial amount of

         11  working trying to get these compacters in there. We

         12  don't have every development in place yet, but it is

         13  a commitment that we have made to continue to move

         14  in that direction.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Chairman

         18  Martinez. There was a time when the New York City

         19  Housing Authority had its own police force, it no

         20  longer enjoys that service, and you don't separate

         21  crime statistics in NYCHA projects anymore, do you?

         22                 The MMR does not include any

         23  reference to crime stats in NYCHA developments, is

         24  that good or bad?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We do not collect
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          2  the crime data as we did when we had the police

          3  force. We now receive data from the NYPD through the

          4  Housing Bureau, and that data gives us an indication

          5  as to what the shifting crime statistics are in our

          6  developments. That was the basis for my earlier

          7  statement that crime is actually down in development

          8  from what it has been historically, and that it is

          9  actually this year leading the City. Our

         10  developments have less crime.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: They are not

         12  part of the MMR statistics.

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, they are not.

         14  Since we have no control over it, it would be

         15  difficult for us to put together.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you do have

         17  statistical knowledge as to whether crime is up or

         18  crime is down?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Based on what the

         20  Police Department provides us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Oh, okay. All

         22  right.

         23                 As it relates to waiting lists, how

         24  many applications do you have on your waiting list,

         25  and are you still accepting applications, and what
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          2  is the anticipated time on the list before you get a

          3  key?

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: For some people it

          5  could be an extremely long wait.

          6                 We have, as I said, our Section 8

          7  waiting list has been closed since 1989.

          8  Consequently the people that we receive applications

          9  from are people who fall into one of the three

         10  categories that I mentioned earlier, such as the

         11  victims of domestic violence, the homeless and

         12  intimidated witnesses.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: They are given

         14  priority?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They receive

         16  priority for any turnover that we have in the

         17  section 8 program.

         18                 On the public housing side we do have

         19  a list open, we do have about 180,000 people on the

         20  public housing waiting list, and say about because

         21  what is difficult is we don't know from year to year

         22  how many of those people may have changed their

         23  circumstance until we actually call them in for an

         24  eligibility interview, but because we do have

         25  priorities that I described earlier, which include
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          2  the working family preference, the victims of

          3  domestic violence, et cetera, there are people on

          4  the list who may in the foreseeable future never

          5  have their name brought to the top of the list and

          6  be able to access housing. Housing is a very scarce

          7  commodity in New York City, and affordable housing

          8  is even scarcer. Consequently, we don't have that

          9  much turnover and what we do have is very quickly

         10  consumed by people who have a variety of emergency

         11  priorities.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But as we speak,

         13  people are still applying in their applicants for

         14  being accepted and put on file?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Not for the

         16  Section 8 program but for --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: No, not for

         18  Section 8, but for public housing.

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Public housing,

         20  yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         22                 Five years ago, I think it was or so,

         23  you talked about privatization, a privatization

         24  pilot or privatization component, of your management

         25  responsibility, of your responsibility.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You have

          4  embarked upon that project some years ago. Now,

          5  there was supposed to be a report, an evaluation,

          6  what this experience has shown, and we haven't seen

          7  that evaluation. Are you compared to give us an

          8  update on the privatization project or experiment?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Absolutely. I just

         10  reviewed the final report that was put together

         11  about three weeks ago and raised a number of

         12  questions that were not clear in my reading of the

         13  report that I have asked for clarification, and as

         14  soon as that clarification is made, we are prepared

         15  to share that because I know we are very delinquent

         16  in having completed that assessment.

         17                 I can't speak to the issue of why it

         18  wasn't completed in a more timely fashion, but it

         19  was one of the first issues that I asked about when

         20  the Mayor appointed me as Chairman, and so we have

         21  finalized that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: There are some

         23  opponents of privatization, they have those who

         24  support it, but it would certainly be very helpful

         25  to both sides to know what your experience has been.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is also

          3  important I think to note that privatization is much

          4  broader than just a private management.

          5  Privatization also includes some of the initiatives

          6  that we have underway in the energy area, that also

          7  includes possibility of creating resident management

          8  programs in the future. It includes things like the

          9  Coca Cola contract that we mentioned in the

         10  testimony. There are a broad range of different

         11  issues that we are looking at that will allow us to

         12  either take advantage of what the private sector

         13  does, or bring them in in a collaborative fashion.

         14  It is not limited to just a management issue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Speaking of the

         16  energy program, or your energy responsibility, I

         17  know that every project, there isn't a day that goes

         18  by that someone doesn't come to you with some gizmo

         19  or gadget that is going to reduce fuel consumption

         20  by 150 percent; am I right?

         21                 Have you really seen something of

         22  substance in those proposals? And have you

         23  implemented any that have brought the projected

         24  results? Or are they all snake oil?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, we actually
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          2  have.

          3                 You may recall that several years we

          4  entered into an agreement with Brooklyn Union Gas

          5  for the computerization of a number of our boiler

          6  plants, and that has become a very successful

          7  program because it has helped us to reduce not only

          8  in the area of staffing costs, but it has minimized

          9  the cost associated with maintaining some of our

         10  boilers because we have an earlier warning system

         11  letting us know when there is a problem, and we can

         12  respond in a more quicker fashion to get the work

         13  completed rather than having hours go by and have it

         14  deteriorate even further.

         15                 We are now moving into the next stage

         16  of technology which will have this computerization

         17  not only identify problems, but take a corrective

         18  action before any human intervention is necessary.

         19  So, we are very, very positive about that. We have

         20  also looked at some other areas where we can acquire

         21  either gasoline or oil at the well head rather than

         22  buying it through third parties, and this is another

         23  way for us to further reduce the cost of energy. We

         24  have a whole very comprehensive approach to dealing

         25  with our energy consumption and utilities in
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          2  general.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Very good.

          4                 Another question is about your

          5  statement, where you make reference on page four to

          6  painting a ceiling red.

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is there any

          9  plans to change that formula to, or change the

         10  amount of the ceiling rent?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, the ceiling

         12  rent was put in place ten years ago, in 1989.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Can you do that

         14  as a board?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, we can but it

         16  requires that when we want to make that adjustment

         17  that we would have a series of public hearings to

         18  advise people.

         19                 Here is the complexity of the issue,

         20  which I am sure you can appreciate. Ten years ago we

         21  set the ceiling rent for a two-bedroom apartment and

         22  set it for $495 a month. Today, ten years later, we

         23  have residents who instead of paying 30 percent of

         24  their income, which is the federal standard, have

         25  reached the point that their income is greater than
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          2  what would equate to the ceiling rent at 30 percent,

          3  and for many of them they may only be paying 10, 12,

          4  13 percent of their income.

          5                 It would seem reasonable for us to

          6  then look at an adjustment to those numbers so that

          7  as a matter of equity people who are only making

          8  $10,000 are paying 30 percent of their income, would

          9  be able to look at those who have been fortunate to

         10  generate more income paying closer to 30 percent.

         11                 Now, we recognize that that can

         12  create somewhat of a sticker shock for people, so we

         13  are prepared to create a transition so that it

         14  doesn't hit people immediately, but this is a topic

         15  that we need to discuss so that people understand

         16  the reason behind wanting to make that adjustment

         17  and can appreciate in doing that it will create more

         18  revenue to the authority to ensure that we can

         19  maintain the units we have and it will create a more

         20  equitable environment so that most people will be

         21  paying closer to 30 percent of their income and we

         22  believe that is a practical and reasonable thing to

         23  do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You anticipate a

         25  lot of discussion on this topic, I am sure?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Without question.

          3                 It was raised a couple of years ago

          4  when there was considerable discussion.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: One final area,

          6  give me a minute to find it. It is a series of

          7  questions that we have been asked to get a response

          8  to. Are you familiar with the Citywide protocol for

          9  E.mail routing, tracking and response time? And if

         10  it is yes, could you describe it for us?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, I am familiar

         12  with it, and we try to adhere to the Citywide

         13  process when we receive an E.mail, and understand

         14  that the way that that New York City linking mail

         15  system works is that if somebody sends me an E.mail,

         16  it does not come to me and my computer, it comes to

         17  a central point and then a hard copy is presented

         18  and routed around to my office or to any number of

         19  other offices. But when we receive that, we do not

         20  send back an acknowledgement, but what we do try to

         21  do is identify whether or not they have given us an

         22  address because we have a commitment to respond

         23  within ten working days.

         24                 Now, one of the difficulties that we

         25  have that perhaps other agencies don't have is that
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          2  when we get an inquiry, often what we are being

          3  asked to provide is more complex and can't be just

          4  E.mailed back, we need to get hard copy. And the

          5  difficulty that we sometimes run into is that the

          6  people will send for an E.mail but they don't give

          7  us an address where we can send anything and then we

          8  have to try to track them down, hoping that the

          9  E.mail address that they have when we send a

         10  response back, will in fact get to them so that we

         11  can get an address to mail the material to.

         12                 But we have a commitment, and what we

         13  have tried to do since I returned to the Authority,

         14  is we have reorganized a number of areas in the

         15  authority so we now have the E.mail responsibility

         16  assigned to our Department of Public and Community

         17  Relations, and they are in the process of not only

         18  setting up an extensive protocol, but they are also

         19  going to be responsible for looking at creating a

         20  more sophisticated web site so that people can

         21  interact with us in a more efficient fashion.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you ever --

         23  was your answer to my question you don't have a

         24  written --

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They are in the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  process of working on one.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: At this time?

          4  Okay.

          5                 All right, is the E.mail advertised

          6  on your telephone answering system?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, it is not.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What percentage

          9  of your inquiries, and/or complaints are handled by

         10  E.mail versus telephone or mail? What percentage --

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Of everything that

         12  we have coming in, about one-half of one percent

         13  through E.mail currently, and we hope that in about

         14  July of the Year 2000 we will, in conjunction with

         15  the City's Department of Information and Technology,

         16  be able to create our own web site, and that will

         17  make it less complicated for people to E.mail

         18  directly to us and for us to respond directly to

         19  them, so that our goal is to actually make it more

         20  user-friendly in the future.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Any other

         22  member? Council Member Warden.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: He is our E.mail

         25  expert.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Well, not only

          3  E.mail.

          4                 I am trying to do the math on your

          5  ceiling. You said two-bedroom max 495. Okay, that

          6  suggests an annual salary of approximately $19,800,

          7  thirty percent of that being 495.

          8                 Okay, so now someone who makes more

          9  is still paying the 495 --

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Is that what

         12  you are saying?

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Now, that

         15  19,800, is that based on calculation of gross or

         16  calculation of net income?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is gross.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: So, it is

         19  actually --

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Pursuant to

         21  federal law.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Right. But it

         23  is actually not 30 percent then, it is actually --

         24  in terms of disposable income it might be 35 or 39

         25  percent.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay, I wanted

          4  to make sure of that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          6  Nelson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just for the

          8  record, I thought we agreed on 100 percent of

          9  issues, Mr. Chair. But I think it is a good idea to

         10  have police given incentives to live in the housing.

         11  One, it is sort of like an incentive motivated

         12  residential requirement in a way. Two, for the

         13  people who live there they feel a lot more secure. I

         14  have never heard a mother say really, let's not go

         15  in that building there is an account in Apartment

         16  3C. You might get me with a number 3 pencil or

         17  number 2 pencil or something. So, I think it is

         18  great, just for the record, overall. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: And just let me

         20  add, if I might, that one of the real advantages is

         21  that the officers who moved in also agree to perform

         22  community service in that development and so it

         23  makes them more visible and people come to know who

         24  they are and the commitment that they have made to

         25  the community.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, Mike, you

          3  and I agree 100 percent, all right?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: All right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I just want to

          6  get as much diversity in our housing development as

          7  possible.

          8                 Clearly, 600,000 people, how about

          9  the size of New Jersey, 300,000?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The whole City?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes. It is

         12  certainly not 600,000.  We are talking about a large

         13  number of people who represent a great part of our

         14  population of New York City, and the New York City

         15  Housing Authority, probably one of its jewels, I

         16  think, one of its assets that has got to be

         17  protected and strengthened, so Mr. Chairman and

         18  members of the Board, Mr. General Manager and staff,

         19  you all have a very heavy responsibility which we

         20  share with you. So, if sometimes we are critical, it

         21  is all about how best to achieve what our common

         22  goal is, and that is we don't have to go through the

         23  experience of having our buildings dynamited.  And

         24  whether they are large developments or small

         25  developments, some of the smaller developments are
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          2  proven to be unmanageable because of poor

          3  management. It doesn't matter whether it is 600,000

          4  or 600, some of them, it is because of -- as you go

          5  around the country you see signs of unacceptable

          6  blight and decay in public housing because of poor

          7  management.

          8                 So, keep up the good work, we are

          9  partners. Thank you for coming, and we will look

         10  forward to getting together on those other items,

         11  the co-oping and the ceiling rent --

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We will get that

         13  information.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: -- And there is

         15  some other information that we have asked for.

         16                 Thank you so much.

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Absolutely. Thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This concludes

         20  this portion of the Mayor's Management Report

         21  hearing.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 12:46 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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